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DDR_ - - 

DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable Mr. Barney Arceneaux, Mayor 
And the Members of the City Council 
City of Gonzales, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Gonzales, Louisiana 
(the City), as of and for the year then ended May 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Gonzales, Louisiana, as of May 31, 2023, and the respective changes 
in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described 
in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required 
to be independent of the City of Gonzales, Louisiana and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Gonzales, Louisiana's ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently 
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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.4uditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectn es are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generallv accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standiwds will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements 
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
intluence the judgment made hy a reasonable user based on the tinancial statements. 

In perairming an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards. we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropnate in the circumstances, but not kw the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Gonzales, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judiunent, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial douht about the City of Gonzales, Louisiana's ability to continue as a going concern 
for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10, budgetary comparison schedule on page 59, schedule of changes 
in net opeh liability and related ratios on page 60, schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability 
on page 61, schedule of pension contributions on page 62, and notes to the schedule of proportionate share of 
the net pension liability and schedule of pension contributions on page 63 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of tinancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic. or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the idormation and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 



or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial 
statements, schedule of per diem paid, schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head 
or chief executive officer, and justice system funding schedule-collecting/disbursing entity are presented for 
the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information 
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, schedule of per diem paid, schedule 
of compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head or chief executive officer, and justice system 
funding schedule-collecting/disbursing entity are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 30, 2023 on 
our consideration of the City of Gonzales, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 
Gonzales, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Gonzales, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

lok6,3 0A-ek.1 'Au) 
October 30, 2023 
Gonzales, Louisiana 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MAY 31, 2023  

This section of City's annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the City's financial 
performance during the tiscal year that ended on May 31, 2023. This document focuses on the current year's 
activities. resulting changes. and currently known thets m comparison with the prior year's information (where 
available). 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The City's comhined total net position increased by $5,587,737 or 6.5 percent over the course of this 
year's operations. Net position of the governmental activities increased approximately $5.8 ntillion and 
decreased approximately $201,000 of the business-type activities 

• During the year. the City's govenunental activities expenses were approximately 55.8 million less than 
the $30.2 million generated in charges for services. taxes, grants and contributions, and other revenue. 
In the City's business-type activities, expenses were approximately $201,000 rnore than the $9.5 
million generated in charges for services and general revenues. 

• General Fund reported a decrease in fund balance of $13,233, Capital Projects Fund reported a decrease 
in fund balance of $2.519,069, and the total of non-major fund halance reported an increase in fund 
balance of $1,206,775. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This aimual report consists of four parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic 
financial statements, required supplementary information, and other supplementary information. The basic 
financial statements include three kinds of statements that present different views of the City: 

• The first two statements are L,overnment-wide financial statements that provide both long-terrn and 
short-term information about the City's overall financial status. 

• The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City's 
got ernment. reporting the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 

• The governmental funds statements tell how general government services were tinanced in the 
short term as well as what remains fttr future spending. 

• Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities 
the government operates like businesses, such as gas, water and sewer system. 

• Fiduciary fund statements use resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the primary 
government. These funds are not available to support the City's progrants and operations. 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the tinancial statements and 
prot ide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information 
that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. Table A-1 shows how the required 
parts of this annual report are ananged and relate to one another. 

Tahle A-1 summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion of the City's 
government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this ot erview section of 
management's discussion and analysis explains the structure of contents of each of the statements. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MAY 31, 2023  

Table A- I 

Scope 

Government-

 

Wide 
Statements 

Entire City 
Ciovernment 

Governmental 
Funds 

The activities of the 
City that are not 
proprietary or fiduciary, 
such as general government, 
public safety, streets and 
drainage. sanitation, 
recreation and buildines and 
grounds, civic center. and 
code enforcement 

Proprietary 
Fund 

Activities the City 
operates similar to 
private businesses: 
the water, gas, and 
sewer system 

Fiduciary 
Fund 

Instance in which 
the City is the 
custodian for 
another parties 
resources 

Required • Statement of • 
financial 

 

net position • 
statements • Statement of 

activities 

 

Balance Sheet 
Statement of 
revenues, 
expenditures, and 
changes in fund 
balances 

• Statement of 
net position 

• Statement of 
revenues, 
expenses, and 
changes in net 
position 

• Statement of 
cash flows 

• Statement of 
fiduciary net 
position 

• Statement of 
changes in 
fiduciary net 
position 

Accounting Accrual 
basis and accountinL,  and 
measurements economic 
focus resources focus 

Type of All assets and 
asset/liability habilities, both 
information financial and 

capital, and 
short-term and 
long-term  

Modified accrual 
accounting and current 
financial resources 
focus 

Only assets expected to 
be used up and 
liabilities that come due 
during the year or soon 
thereafter: no capital 
assets included 

Accrual 
accountinL,  and 
economic 
resources focus 

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and 
capital, and short-
tenn and long-
tenn  

Accrual 
accounting and 
economic 
resources focus 

All assets and 
liabilities. both 
short-terni and 
long-tenn: the 
City's funds do 
not currently 
contain capital 
assets. although 
they can 

Type of 
inflow/outflow 
information 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
the year, 
regardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid 

Revenues for which 
cash is received during 
or soon after the end of 
the year, expenditures 
when goods or services 
have heen received and 
payments are due during the 
year or soon thereafter 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
year. reeardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
year, regardless 
of when cash is 
received or paid 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MAY 31, 2023  

Government-1N ide Statements 

The governnient-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies The statement of net position includes all of the 
govemment's assets and habihties. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the 
statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid 

These two govemment-wide statements report the City's net position how they have changed. Net position 
- the difference hetween the City's assets and liabilities - is one way to measure the CiVs financial health. 
or financial position. 

• Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position are an indicator of whether its financial 
health is improving or deteriorating, respectively 

• To assess the overall health of the City you need to consider additional nontinancial ffictors such 
as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's infrastructure. 

The government-wide tinancial statements of the City are divided into two categories. 

• Governmental activities — the City's basic services are included here, such as general government. 
public safety, streets and drainage. sanitation. recreation and buildings and grounds, en ic center, 
code enforcement. and economic development. Property taxes and sales taxes finance most of these 
activities. 

• Business-type activities — the C'ity charges fees to customers to help cover the costs of services it 
provides. The city's water, gas, and sewer system are included here. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fluid financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant funds - 
not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of 
funding and spending for particular purposes. 

The City has three kinds of funds: 

• Govermnental funds — Most of the City's basic services are inchided in governmental funds, which 
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and 
out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the 
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine 
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance 
the City's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus 
of the govemment-wide statements, we provide additional inforniation on the subsequent page, that 
explains the relationship (or differences) between them. 

• Proprietary fund - Services for which the City charges customers a fee is generally reported in a 
proprietary fund. The propnetary fund, like the government-wide statements. provide hoth long 
and short-term financial information. In fact. the City's enterprise fund (one type of proprietary 
fund) is the same as its business-type activities, hut provide more detail and additional information, 
such as cash tlows. 

• Fiduciary fund — These funds are used as depositories for police evidence. The funds are custodial 
in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations. We exclude these activities from 
the City's govenunent-wide financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to tinance 
its operations. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MAY 31, 2023  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

Net position. The City's combined net position increased between fiscal years 2023 and /01 2 
approximately $5.8 million to approximatdy $91.7 rmlhon. (See Table A-2.) 

 

Table A-2 
City's Net Position 

Ciiivernmental Business-Type 
.Acti\ities Activities 

2023 *2022 2023 70 77 

Current and uther assets S 32,391,497 $ 29,993.389 $ 8.875,059 S 8.502.897 
Capital assets, net 48,942,074 40,324.453 48.431.812 48.480.73-4 

Total assets 81,333,571 70.317.842 57.306,871 56.983,631 
Deferred outflows of resources 8.842.248 5.707.658 1.675,415 971,369 

Total assets and deferred 
outflows of resources 90.175,819 76,025.500 58.982,286 57.955.000 

Current and other liabilities 8.352,106 4,562.168 2.011,885 1.747.172 
Long-tenn liabilities 27.921,045 19,163.041 16.483,270 15.107.024 

Total liahilities 36.273,151 23.725.209 18.495.155 16.854.196 
Deferred mill s of remain:es 2.116,779 6.133.741 649.212 1.02.137 

Total liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resuurces 3S.389.930 29.858.950 19.144.367 I 7.016.; ; ; 

Net position 

    

Net investment in capital assets 47.813.490 39.780.960 35.603.364 36.858.961 
Restricted 6.779.756 5.581.558 (313.531 2.306.550 
Unrestricted (2,807.357) 631.886 3.621.024 873.156 
Total net position S 51,785.889 $ 45.997.404 $ 39,837.9 I9 $ 40.038,667 

*Restated 

    

Total assets and deferred outflows for the City's governmental activities increased $14 2 million. The 
business-type activities increased $1 million. 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows for the Citv's governmental activities increased $8 5 million. The 
business-type activities increased $1.2 million. 

The largest portion of net position is the net investment in capital assets, which totals $47.8 million for the 
City's governmental activities and $35 6 million for the business-type activities. Capital assets are used to 
provide services to the citizens of the City of Gonzales and are not available for further spending. Net 
investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt: therefore, the resources needed to repay the debt 
must be provided from other sources as capital assets cannot he used to liquidate liabilities. 

The deficit of $2.8 million in unrestricted net position in the governmental activities is primarily the result 
of long-term liabilities such as the net pension liahility required under GASB 68 and the accounting for 
other post-employment benefits under GASB 75. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MAY 31, 2023  

Revenues and transfers 
Program re% enues 

Tabk A-3 
Changes in City's Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
2023 1 077 2023 2022 

    

Charges for services $ 3,044,786 $ 2,695,314 $ 6,631,356 $ 6,240,439 
Grants and contributions 3,772,841 3,801,557 - 

 

General revenues 

    

Taxes 21,058,082 21,412,024 936,724 951,190 
Licenses and permits 1.888,640 1,647,186 

  

Miscellaneous 617,767 599,516 699,745 731,651 
Non-employer contributions to 
pension plan 384,535 376,587 52,716 46,240 

Investment earnings 460,772 (364,416) 56,454 (161,656) 
Contributions Transfers, net (1.075,414) (3,415,258) 1,075.414 3,415,258 

Total revenues and 
transfers 30,152,009 26,753,510 9.452.409 11,224,123 

Expenses 

    

General government 3.146,756 3,771,042 

  

Operating expenses 

 

- 9,653,157 8,117286 
Public safety 13.373,427 11,235,554 

  

Streets and drainage 2.831,146 3,361,370 

  

Sanitation 1,289,107 1,24(1,571 

  

Recreation. Buildings & Grounds 2.387,86(1 2,118,594 

  

Civic center 98,791 134,475 

  

Code enforcement 409,428 365,649 

  

Economic development 785,953 766.366 

  

Interest 41,056 15,544 

  

Total expenses 24,363,574 13.009.165 9.653.157 8.337286 

Change in net position 5,788,485 3,744.345 (200,748) 2.886,837 
Net position, June 1 *(Restated) 45.997,404 4',253,059 40,038.667 37,151,830 
Net position,1Iay 31 S 51.785.889 $ 45.997,404 S 39,837,919 $ 40.038,667 

The City's total revenues and transfers increased by approximately $1.6 million to $39.6 million. 
Approximately 55 percent of the City's revenue is derived from property and sales tax collections. Charges 
for senices represent 24 percent of re% enue. Capital and Operating Grants and Contributions represent 10 
percent. Licenses and permits represent 5 percent of revenue. The remaining 6 percent represents 
miscellaneous. non-employer contributions to pension plans. and investment earnings. 

The total cost of all programs and services increased approximatelv $2.7 million or 8.5 percent. The City's 
expenses cover all services performed by its office. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
MAY 31, 2023  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

As the City cornpleted the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of approxirnately 
$24.2 million, a decrease of approximately $1.3 million or 5.2 percent from last year. 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

There were amendments made in the current year to the general fund budget. General government, Public 
safety, Streets and draink,e, and Code enforcement expenditures increased, in total. by $235,254 to reflect 
increases in salaries and henetits. Revenues increased in total by $85,565 to reflect an increase in grant 
revenues. Transfers increased by $500.000. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

At the end of 2023, the City had invested approximately $97 million in a broad range of capital assets, 
including police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, roads, vehicles, water and sewer lines, 
improvements, construction in progress, and right to use assets. (See Table A-4) This amount represents a 
net increase (including additions and deductions) of approximately $8.5 million from last year. 

 

Table A-4 
City's Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
2023 2022 2(123 2022 

Land $ 4,728,563 $ 4.728.563 $ 118,828 $ 118.828 
Buildings & Equipinent 7,962,606 8,258,017 437,194 207,412 
Improvements 24.736,088 25,294.763 9,762 

 

Lines, meters, & plants 

  

45.042.079 46.633,396 
Vehicles 659.516 1.055,623 110.891 154,170 
C'onstruction in Progress 10,251,573 815,446 2,6(17,955 1,366,928 
Right to use assets 603.728 172,041 105.103 

 

Total S 48.942,074 .S 40.324.453 S 45,431.812 $ 48.450.734 

This year's major capital asset additions included: 
• Business-Type Activities hnes and meters in the arnount of $286.953 for costs associated with the 

ongoing wastewater improvements and upgrades of plant. 
• Business-Type Activities building improvements totaled $291,474. 
• Go‘ernmental Activities improvements to building and new equipment in the amount of $343.714. 
• ernmental Activities improvements to parks. bridges. sidewalks, streets and drainage in 

amounts totaling $I,074,182. 
• Construction in progress for Business-Type Activities totaled $1,241.027 and Governmental 

Activities totaled $9,436,127. 
• Right to use assets for Governmental Activities totaled $431,687. 
• Right to use assets for Business-Type Activities totaled $105,103. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MAY 31, 2023  

This year's major disposals mchide. 
• Governmental Activities disposals of vehicles totaling $173,338 and build*s equipment 

totaling $32.035. 
• Business-Type Activities had disposals of vehicles totaling 520.670. 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The City had the following long-terni liabilities outstanding at year end. 

 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Acti\ nies 
20-'3 2022 2023 2022 

Bonds payahle 1i, 5,392 $ 88,392 $11,075,948 $10,493,956 
Notes payable 79,662 205.757 1,539.008 1.751.301 
Lease liabilities 622,080 169,146 110,768 

 

Other post-employment benefits 7,344,845 7,733.289 1,743.998 1.873.479 
Net pension liability 19,552,871 10,752,905 3,074,423 1,939,084 
Coinpensated absences 579,700 529,400 54,547 66,015 
Total $28,134,050 $19,478,889 $17,598,692 $16,123.845 

The City's total long-term liabilities increased by approximately $10.1 million primarily due to the increase 
in the net pension liability. Changes in actuarial assuinptions and investment performance resulted in a $23 
million increase from prior years liability. The offset for the total is contributed to principal paydowns on 
bonds, notes, and leases. See note 9 for additional information on chanees in long-term liabilities and 
breakout of current portion of lon2-terni liabilities. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES 

For fiscal year ending 2024. the City is dependent on sales tax collections for 70% of its general and capital 
project fund revemies The City's Administration has projected a 4% increase in sales taxes for the 
upcoming fiscal year. Expenditures budgeted in the general fund will remain consistent to the previous 
year. The City believes that the 5 percent increase in sewer rates and 3 percent increase in water rates will 
be more than enough to cover ongoing repairs to the sewer and water infrastnicture. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCLiL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers. customers, and in\ estors and creditors 
with a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the monev 
it receives. If you have questions ahout this report or need additional financial information, contact Brandon 
Boylan, 120 South Irma Boulevard, Gonzales, LA 70737. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

'lI:1Y 31, 2023  

ASSETS 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities Tolal 

   

(I ash aud cash equivalenk $ 15.625,773 $ 3.126.008 $ 18,751,781 
Investments 9.721,193 3.680.378 13,401,571 
Receivables 5.002.584 963.939 5,966,523 
Accrued interest 5.133 1.872 7,005 
Restricted assets: 

   

Cash and cash equivalents 1036.814 491.276 7.578.090 
Investments 

 

611.586 611,586 
Non-depreciabk capital assets 14.980,136 2.726.783 17,706,919 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation aud amortization 33,961,93S 45,705,029 79,666,967 

TOTAL ASSETS 81.333,571 57.306.871 138.640.442 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

   

Pension ielated 7.222.161 1.135.386 8.357.547 
OPEB !elated 1.620,087 540.029 2.160,116 

Total deferred outflows of iesources 

 

11,75..115 10.517,663 

Total assets and deferred outflo s of resources $ (.413.175,819 5 58 982.28o 149,158,105 

LIABILITIES 

   

Accounts payable $ 3,149,767 $ 239,451 $ 3,389,218 
Retainage payable 421.450 

 

421.450 
Accnted expenses 398,773 167.681 566,454 
Cash bonds 21,689 

 

21,689 
Unearned revenues 4.147,422 

 

4,147,422 
Payable limn resnicted assets 

Custoulei deposits 

 

489.331 489,331 
Cul rem portton of long-temi liabi titles 213,005 1.115.422 1,328,427 
Lorin-term liabilities. 

   

Other post employment benefit liability 7.344,845 1.7-13.998 9,088,843 

Compensated absences 529,200 54.547 583,747 
Net peu.sion habilily 19.552,871 3.074.423 22,627,294 
Lease liabilities 476,531 90.479 567,010 
Notes payable 17,598 1.315.186 1,332,784 
Bonds payable - 10.204.637 1(1,2(14,637 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3( ,.'73.151 18.495.155 54.7(,8.306 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

   

Pension related 297.496 42.784 340.280 
OPEB related 1,819,283 606,428 2,425,711 

Total deferred inflows of resources 2,116,779 649,212 2,765,99) 

NET POSITION 

   

Net investment iu capatal assets 47.813,490 35.603.364 83,416,854 
Restricted 6.779,756 613.531 7,393,287 

Unrestrtcted (2,84)7,357) 31)21.024 813,667 
TOTAL NET POSITION 51.785,859 39.537.919 91,623,808 

otal liabilities. deferred inflows of resources anti net position $ 90.175.819 $ 58.982.286 $ 149,158,105 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZAIES  

STATEMENT OF ACT IV ITILS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2I(13  

 

Program Res enues 

 

Net (Expen<el Revenue and 
Changes ui Nei Noonan Fees F Ines. and Capital Operation 

 

Charges for Grants and Grants nal Cito contactual Busine-rtype 

  

Expenses seroces Contributions Conn Muttons As mine, Activities Tmal 

ACTIN'ITIEs 

     

Governmental: 

     

Genoa] t.mvernmeisi i 3. lab,756 S S S50 000 i lfsq,l5Q S t3"4.4291 S - S 074.420} 
Public safety 

Police 

 

irked (7.Cti?,.0491 

  

Fne 4.442.tdos S75.brisk 

 

(3.9O.t.S71 

 

t3.567.1V) 
streets and dr image 2.S.31,I16 2.I 26.c.7 

 

(- 04.4'4) 

 

t M4.474 
Sanitation I 2.1Al 07 

 

(1.2R9.1t(71 

 

t I 2hg.107) 
Recre,dion. Btuldiugs & Grounds 2 3117.bistr 3n.3 37 

  

t2 357.523) 
Coo. center taZ.791 

   

(9Z.'791( 
Code miforcenieut 401.4 28 

 

(4(19.42:O 

 

(40.128) 
Econoouc Development 7h5.4/5.1 

 

oits,15.,) 

 

(71:(5.95.1) 
Interest an ham-term It ibilines 41/146 

 

(41 00 

 

(41,0‘6( 
Toni !t. wenunental activities 24.303,524 .O6.1O I ..!-15./lolt

  

'.345,tigt} 

Bonham-4,pr 
Miry n.o53.15" 6.6.11..556 

  

(30.:1 (3.u:1.1,(.(1) 
Total business-type ado ities a.o'~.I 6.oss 

  

(3 0.:1 (3.u,11.1,(.(1) 
Total Coy of Gonzales s 31 (lie.•.c(s. cc. • 2 1 I (."  i 1 1c. so —

 

l Sc. (20 567.60g) 

 

General Revenuev 

     

Taxes 

 

2 Luch.oS2 934.- 24 21 ;At 1,1;06 

 

Liseose,  and petuuts 

 

IA/VS.640 

 

l.t.b8.nin 

 

Miscellaneous 

Transfers. net 

 

,td".767 

i I u75.-t la) 

Asm 145 

1.07‘.-1l4 

I ?I7.512 

 

Non-employet connibutions to pemdou plait 

 

314.53S 52 lln 437.25 I 

 

Int emneut eanungs 

 

46e.." , .: .te, l*r 4 5 I - ,22o 

 

Total rieneral res cones 

 

.:3. • 4 • t.2 I HI 0,  ' .20.i Ci,436 

C Image in net position 

 

'S.7S:i -itl'S . _01/ "4..)) 

 

5 5h7., 37 

Net position - begiruumi. as restated 

  

(., 

  

116.1)3hAr 

Net position - ending S 51.78igS9 3,i S3 -  I S 

 

The sesompanynts: nutes are mtemal part of this tSuwcr,l statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

BALANCE SHEET  
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  

MAY 31 2023 

ASSETS 

Gener,i1 
1- mid 

Capital Projects 
Fund 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

    

Cash and cash equivaknts S 5,787.799 S 5,407.815 S 4,430.159 S 15,625,773 
Investments 9,721.193 

  

9,721,193 
Receivables. net of allowance 3,171.442 1,533203 "97.939 5,002.584 
Due from other funds 

 

481,157 

 

481,157 
Accrued interest 5.133 

  

5.133 
Restricted assets 

    

Cash and cash equivalents 

  

2,036.814 2,036.814 

Total assets S 18,685,567 S 7,422,175 S 6,764.912 S 32.872,654 

LIABILITIES 

    

Accounts payable S 241.481 S 2,794.181 S 114.105 S 3,149.767 
Retuinage payable - 421.450 

 

421.450 
Due to other funds 481.157 

  

481.157 
Cush bonds 1 1.689 

  

21.6:;.(9 
Accrued expenses 396.393 

 

1 .380 398.773 
Unearned revenues 88.348 4,059.074 

 

4,147.422 

Total liabilities 1,229.068 7,174.705 116.485 8.020.158 

FUND BALANCES 

    

Committed: 

    

Capital projects 

 

147.470 

 

147.470 
Restricted 131.3'9 

 

6,648,427 6,779,756 

Assigned 305.169 

  

305.169 
Unassigned 17,020,001 

  

l7.(120.001 

Total fund balances 17_456.499 147.470 6,648.427 '4.151.196 

Total liabilities and fund balances S 18.685.567 1/4, 7.422.175 S 6.764.912 S 32.87 -'.654 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNNIENTAL FUNDS BALANC'E SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSTCION  

MAY 31, 2023  

Total fund balances - Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position is 
different because: 

Deferred outflows - pension related 
Deferred outflows - OPEB related 

24,152,396 

7,222,161 
1,620,087 

Capital assets used in the governmental activities that are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds: 

Cost of capital assets at May 31, 2023 102,471,184 
Less: accumulated depreciation as of May 31. 2023 (54,132,838) 48,338,346 

Right to use assets at May 31. 2023 794,854 
Less: accumulated amortization as of May 31, 10/3 (191,126) 603,718 

Lmg-term liabihties applicable to the Citys governmental activities are not due and 
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. 

Net pension liabilitv (19,552,871) 

Deferred inflows - pension related 297,496) 
Deferred inflows - OPEB related (1,819,283) 
Other post employment benefits (7,344,845) 

Lease liahilities (622,080) 
Notes payahle (79,6(,2) 

Bonds payable (5,392) 

Compensated absences t 529,200) 

Total net position at May 31, 2023 - Governmental Acti‘ities 51,785,889 
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND  
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES  

YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2023  

REVENUES 
General 

Capital 
Projects 

Other 
GI A emrnental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

    

Taxes S 15.579,701 S 3,746.896 S 1.731.485 S 21.058,082 
Franchise fees 1,487.377 

  

1,487377 
Licenses and permits 1,888.640 

  

1.888.640 
Fees. fines and forfeitures 135.919 

  

135.919 
Miscellaneous 542.767 

 

75.000 617,767 
Wastewater impact fees 

 

545.791 

 

545.791 
Fire department revenue 875.699 

  

875.699 
Intergovernmental revenues: 

    

Federal grants 85.723 

  

85.723 
State and local grants 1,010.446 2,676.672 

 

3,687.118 
Investment earnings l S9.430 116.36S 134.974 -160.771 

Total revenues :1.795.71)2 7,105.727 1.941.459 10.s4'.8 

EXPENDITURES 

    

Current 

    

General government 2,208,704 167.200 

 

?,375.404 
Public safety 

    

Police 7.167.981 528.823 

 

7,696.804 
Fire 4,105.608 328A13 

 

4.434.111 
Streets and drainage 1.414.368 2,974.401 

 

4,388.769 
Sanitation 1,287.532 

  

1.287.532 
Recreation. building and grounds 1.722.785 7,865.764 

 

9,588.549 
Civic center 44.219 

  

44.219 
Code enforcement 384.152 20.578 

 

404.730 
Economic development 

  

785.953 785.953 
Debt Service 

    

Principal 

  

83.000 83,ono 

Interest 

  

3.430 3,43o 

Total expenditures 31*;,-1.30 1 1 SSS, 1 7g 872.383 ;1 .00 7O01 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 3.460.263 (4,779,452) 1.069.076 (250.113) 

OTHER FLNANCING SOURCES (USES 

    

Transfer in 26.504 5.535.633 

 

5.562.137 
Transfer out (3.500.000) (3,275,250) 137.699 (6,637.551) 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) {3,473,496) 2.260.383 137.699 {1.075.414) 

Net change in fund balances (13.233) (2.519.069) 1,206.775 {1 .325.527) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 17,469,732 1 .666.539 5,441.652 25.577.923 
Fund Balance, End uf Year S 17,456,499 S 147,470 S 6,648.427 S 24,252,396 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

MAY 31, 2023  

Total change in net fiuid balances - Govenunental tunds 
 

(,1.325.527) 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities is different because: 

Governmental hinds repirt capital outlay as expenditures However. in the statement 
of activities. the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives 
and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital assets: 
Capital outlay capitalized 10.854,023 
Right to use assets additions 546.722 

Depreciation expense (2.668,089) 
Amortization expense for richt to use assets (115.035) 8.617.621 

Govenunental funds report debt proceeds as other financing sources However. in the 
Statement of Activities. this deht is recorded as a liability. Likewise, in the 
governmental funds, pnnciple payments are reported as an expenditure_ but in the 

Statement of Activities. its reported as a reduction in liabilities.  

Lease habililties incurred 

Payments on lease oblivations 

(546,722) 
93.788 

 

Payments On other long-term liabilities 2u9.00c (243.839) 

Net effects of chanue in net pension liability and deferrals 

 

(1.524.745) 
Net effects of change in OPEB liability and deferrals 

 

(119.7611) 

Non-emphiyer contributions to pension plans 

 

384.535 

Changes in compensated absences 

 

/tai 

Changes in net position of govenunental activities 

 

r'.7,-tt•;:"; 

The acctimpanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  

PROPRIETARY FUND 
NIAY 31 2023 

ASSETS 

 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 

3.126.008 
Curreiit assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investmelits 

 

3 680.378 
Receivables (uet of allowance) 

 

963.939 
Restricted assets - investments 

 

611.586 
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents 

 

491.276 
Accmeil interest 

 

1 872 
Total current assets 

 

75,050 

NI IIICIment assets: 

  

Non-depreciable capital assets 

 

2 726.783 
Capital assets, net id accumulated depreciation and amortization 

 

45,705.029 
Total noncurrent assets 

 

48431.812 
TOTAL ASSETS 

 

57.30t,.871 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

  

Pension related 

 

1.135 386 
OPEB related 

 

540.029 
Iota] deferred outflows of resources 

 

1 675.415 

Total assets and deferred outflow, of resources 

 

5N.9N2,'86 

LL‘BILITIES 

  

Cluient liabditirn 

  

Accowits payable 4 239.451 
Accnied expenses 

 

167.681 
Current pornon ot long-tenu liabilities 

 

1 115.422 
Cust, quer deposits 

 

489.331 
Total cluient 

 

2.01i 885 

Noueunein Itahtltties 

 

Couipensated absences 54.547 

Net peusou hability 3 074.423 

Net OPEB liability 1.743,998 

Lease liabilities 90,479 

Notes payable 1315.186 

Bonds payahle 10.204.67 

Total noncurrent liabilities 16.4s3.270 

TOTAL LIABILITIES Iti.9•45 155 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOI.RCES 

 

Pension related 42 784 

OPEB related 606.428 

Total deterred inflow% ot resources 649.212 

NET POSITION 

 

Net investment in capital assets 35.603,364 

Restneted to debt service 613.53t 

Unrestricted 3.621.024 

TC)TAL NET POSITION 39.837.919 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position 58,982.286 

The accompanying notes are an inteca al part of Ibis financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES. AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION  
PROPRIETARY FUND  

YEAR ENDED \IAN-  31, 2023  

OPERATING REVENUES 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 

Charges for sen ice: 
Gas sales S -7.'31,504 
Sewer sen ice charges 2,575,568 
Water sales 1.823.284 

Miscellaneous 699.745 
Contributions from non-employer contributing entities-pension benefit 52.716 

Total operating revenues 7.38.1,817 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

 

Ci as department 2.570.614 
General and administrative 1.280.101 
Depreciation and amortization 1.985.8'5 
Water department 2,303,755 
Sewer department 1,302,000 

Total operating expenses 9,442,295 

OPERATING LOSS (2,058,478) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSESI 

 

In\ estment earnings 56,454 

Sales tax revenue 936.724 

Interest expense (210.862) 
Net nomiperatine rex enues 78?,316 

Loss bef0re transfers and contributions 

 

(1.276.162) 

Capital contributions 

 

3.137.551 

Transfers out 

 

(2.062.137) 

Changes in net position 

 

(200 7-18) 

Total net position - beginning 

 

40,038,667 

Total net position - ending 5 39.837,919 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2023 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers 

Enterprise 
Fund 

S 7.51 '3.253 

Payments to supplieis (5.034.888) 
Payments to employees (1.624.770) 

Nel cash provided by operating activities 858.595 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

 

Transfers to other funds (2.0(.2.1371 

Intergovernmeinal revenue 936.724 
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (l.12c.413) 

CASH FL(1WS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

  

Purchases of capital assets 

 

OA-19.454) 

Rii.ihr to use assets at.qmred 

 

(117.449) 

Payments on long-terni IiKUihties 

 

t 1.067.9, 4) 

Proceeds from lease airangements 

 

l F7.449 

Proceeds from loniktenn liabilines 

 

1,430.992 

interest paid 

 

I
.
2
1
14

:5
8) 

Capital contriblitions 
Nel cash provided by capital and related financing activities 

3 

   

1.470,253 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

  

Proceeds floni saks and maturities of Investments 

  

Purchases isf investments 

 

(1.852.716) 
Invesullent earnings 

 

56.454 
Net rash pros hied by investing activities 

 

118.716 

Net mcrease m cash and restricted rash 

 

1.322,151 

Cash anal restricted cash - June I, 2022 

 

2.295,133 

Cash and restiicted cash - May 31, 2023 5 3.617.284 

CASH FLO% S FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

 

Operating loss S (2.058.47/0 

Adjusmients to reconctle operating loss to net 

t piovided by operatine as.tivitics - 

 

Depreciation and amonization 1.985.825 

Bad debt expense 3ls.215 

Pension expense adjustment 1.135.339 

OPER expense adjustment (129.481) 

Net changes in operaung assets and liabilities 

 

Accounts receivable 848.682 

Other assets 830 

Deferred uiflow of resources (412.925) 

Deferrcd outflow of resourt.es (, 04.046) 

.Aci..wits payahle 70.65is 

Customer ilepostts 4i.330 

Accrued liabilities 54,124 

Compensated absences 111.4710 

Net cash provided by operating actis ilies S S58.595 

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-C:ash Financing Activities 

Asseb acquired through lease obligations 117.449 

The accompanying notes are an unegral part of ttus financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUND  

MAY 31, 2023  

Custodial 

ASSETS Fund 

Cash and cash equik alents 3.761 

TOTAL ASSETS 3.761 

NET POSITION 

Restricted for: 

orgamzanons, and other governments 3,761 

TOTAL NET POSITION 3.761 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUND  
MAY 31, 2023  

Custodial 

Fund 

Additions: 

Evidence 3.836 

Total additions 

Deductions: 

Disbursements to other governments 

Total deductions 

Change in fiduciary net position 

Net Position - Beginning 

Net Position - Endinu 

75 

The accompanvin2 notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary uf Siettificant Accounting Policies 

The City of Gonzales, Louisiana, (the City) was incorporated April 15, 1922, under the provision of 
the Lawrason Act. The City operates under a Mayor-City Council form of government. 

The accompanying financial statements of the City has been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Govermnental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-settme body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. Pursuant to Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting an(! Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30. 1989 FASB and .11CPA Pronouncements, the City has 
elected to directly incorporate into GASB's authoritative literature and certain pronouncements issued 
by FASB and its predecessors on or before November 30, 1989 

Financial Reporting Entity 

This report includes all funds which are controlled by, or dependent on the City's executive and 
legislative branches (the Mayor and the City Council). Control by or dependence on the City was 
determined on the basis of budget adoption. taxing authority, authority to issue debt, election or 
appointment of governing body, and other general oversight responsibility. 

Based on the foregoing criteria, certain organizations are not part of the City and are thus excluded 
from the accompanying financial statements. These are the Friends of the Nluseum, Beautification 
Board. and Committee on Cultural Affairs. 

The fmancial report has been prepared in conformity with GASB Statement No. 34, basic Financial 
Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, issued 
in June. 1999. 

Related Organizations - The City Council is also responsible for appointing the members of the board 
of the Industrial Development Board of the City of Gonzales, but the City's accountability for this 
organization does not extend beyond making the appointments. 

Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: The statement cif net position and the statement of activities display 
information about the City of Gonzales These statements include the financial activities of the overall 
government, except for fiduciary activities These statements distinguish hetween the governmental 
and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed 
in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 



CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

1. Summary uf Sienificant Accountina Policies (continued) 

The staternent of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governrnental 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a prograrn or fimction and. 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and 
charges paid by the recipients of goods and services offered hy the programs and (b) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
program Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as 
general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds. 
Separate statements for each fund category — govertunental and proprietaty — are presented. The 
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise fund, each displayed in 
a separate column. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

a. Gencral Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account 
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another hand. 

b. Capital Projects Fund - Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be 
used for the acquisition or constntetion of major capital facilities (other than those financed hy 
proprietary fund.$). 

The City reports the following proprietary fund. 

a. Enterprise Fund - This fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated 
in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is 
that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing good.s and sen ices to the general 
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges: or (b) 
where the governing body has decided the periodic determination of rei, enues earned, expenses 
incurred, and0r net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy. management 
control, accountability, or other purposes. 

The City reports the following fiduciary fund: 

a. Custodial Fund — The Custodial Fund is used as a depository f'or police e‘idence. The fund is 
custodial in nature and does not involve measurement of results of operations. 



CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

1. Summary uf Sii(mificant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Nleasurement Focus, Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and proprietary 
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City 
gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include 
property taxes, grants. entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes 
is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements. and 
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 
as soon as they are both measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported in the 
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest 
on general long-term debt and compensated absences which are recognized as expenditures to the extent 
they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 
financing sources. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, grants, and interest are 
considered to be su.sceptible to accrual. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the government. 

Proprietaiy Fluid Financial Statements. Proprietary funds are reported using the economic financial 
resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. The operating revenues. such as 
charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activitv of the fund. 
Exchange transactions are those in which each party receive and gives up essentially equal values. Non-
operating revenues, such as investment earnings and sales tax revenues. result from nonexchange 
transactions or ancillary activities. 

Interfund Activity 

Transfers between funds are not expected to be repaid and are accounted for as other financing sources 
(uses). These other financing sources (uses) are recognized at the time the underlying events occur. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial 
statements. 

1) The City's Mayor and Clerk prepare a proposed hudget message and budget and submit it to 
the City Council prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

2) A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public notified that the proposed 
budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (contmued) 

3) A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least two weeks after publication of the call 
for the hearing. 

4) After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to tinalize and 
implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted 

5) Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program, or 
fiinction to another, or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding 
amounts estimated require the approval of the City Council. 

6) All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

7) The budgets tbr the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Budgeted 
amounts are as originally adopted. or amended from time to time by the City council. Such 
amendments were not rnaterial in relation to the original appropriations. 

Cash and Cash Equi‘alents  — Cash and cash equn alents include investments in highly hquid debt 
instruments with an original maturity of three months or less, excluding amounts whose use is limited 
by board desipation or those amounts with third-party payers. 

Accounts Receivable  — In the government-wide statements, receivahles consist of all revenues earned 
at year-end and not yet received. For governmental activities, =collectible amounts due for receivables 
are recognized as bad debts and directly charged off at the tirne information becomes available which 
indicates that the particular receivable is not collectible. In governmental tund types. the uncollectible 
amount is charged to the revenue reported. In business-type activities. =collectible amounts due from 
utility billing receivables are recognized as had debts through the use of an allowance accuunt or are 
directly charged off at the time information becomes available which indicated that the particular 
receivable is not collectible. Utility accounts in excess of 120 days are deemed uncollectible and 
reser% ed through the allowance. 

estments - Investments are reported at fair value. 

Capital Assets  — Capital assets, which include property. plant. equipment, and mfrastnicture assets e.g. 
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items). are reported in the applicahle governmental ur business-
type activities colurnns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at 
historical cost or estimated cost. Assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001. consist of the road network assets 
that were acquired or that received substantial improvements subsequent to July 1. 1980, and are 
repurted at estimated histurical cost using deflated replacement cost. Donated fixed assets are recorded 
as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The municipality maintains 
a threshold level of $5,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets. The cost of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the vahie of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary uf Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Asset Class Estimates Useful Lives 
Buildings and Infrastructure 30-40 
Improveniznts 15-40 
Vehicles 5-15 
Equipment 3-40 

Depreciation of tixed assets used by business-type activities is charged as an expense against 
operations. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line 
method. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Years 
Lines, meters, & plants 1 5-50 
Buildings 8: improvements 15-40 
Equipment 4-10 
Vehicles 4-5 

All fixed assets are stated at historical cost or estimated historical cost. if actual historical cost is not 
ailable. Donated fixed assets are stated at their estimated fair value on the date received. 

Interest incurred during construction in the governmental activities and business-type activities is 
reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of invesunent earnings on invested loan 
proceeds during the same period. Net interest expense capitalized during the year ended May 3 I, 2023, 
amounted to $0. 

Leases - The City is a lessee under noncancellable lease agreements for a variety of purposes and uses, 
including equipment and sehicles. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 87. Leases, the City 
recognizes a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) in the financial 
statements Lease liabilities are recorded for lease contracts with an initial individual value that is 
material to the financial statements and with lease periods greater than one year. 

At the commencement of a lease, the City initially measures the lease liability at the present value of 
payments expected to be made during the lease term Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the 
principal portion of lease payments made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of 
the lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus 
certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its 
useful life. Key estimates and Judgments related to leases include (1) the discount rate used to calculate 
the present value of expected lease payments, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments. 

• The City uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate, if provided. When 
the interest rate charged by the lessor is not provided, the City uses its estimated incremental 
borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases. 

"6 



CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

1. Summan-  of Sianificant lceountin2 Policies (continued) 

tc.40-continued 
• The lease terms include the noncancellable period of the lease and optional renewal periods. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease hability are composed of fixed 
payments through the noncancellable term of the lease and renewal periods that 
management considers reasonably certain to be exercised. 

The City monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and will 
remeasure the lease asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect 
the amount of the lease liability. Lease assets are reported with capital assets and lease liabilities are 
reported with long-term liabilities on the statement of net position. 

Compensated .Absences — The habihty for compensated absences reported in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund statements consists of unpaid, accumulated annual and vacation leave balances. The 
liabihty has been calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees 
currently eligible to receive termination payments and other employees who are expected to become 
eligible in the future to receive such payments upon termination are included. 

Bad Dehts — Uncollectible amounts due for ad valorem taxes and customers' utility receivables are 
expensed when the debt becomes =collectible, which is not materially different from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The City considers any utility receivable 
where service has been disconnected to be uncollectible. All utility receivables with service are 
considered collectible. 

Statcrnent of Cash Flows  — For purposes of the statement of cash tlows, the Enterprise Fund considers 
all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets). with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
eenerally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liahilities at the date the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position  — Gmernment-wide and propnetary fund net 
position displayed in three components: 

Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, 
notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction. or improvement of 
those assets. 
Restricted net position - Consists ofnet assets with constraints placed on the use either hy external 
groups such as creditors, grantors, contnbutors, or laws and regulations of other governments, or 
law through constitutional pro‘isions or enabling litigation. 
Unrestricted net position - Consist of all other net assets that do not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets". 



CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Sunman-  of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it rs the government's policy to 
used restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Fund Equity of Fund Financial Statements - Accounting standards require governmental fund balances 
to he reported in as many as five classifications as listed below: 

Nons endable - represents amounts that are not expected to he converted to cash because they are 
either not in spendable form or legally contractually required to be maintained intact. 
Restricted  - represents balances where constraints have heen established by parties outside the 
City or imposed hy law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
Committed  - represents balances that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. 
Assianed - represents balances that are constrained by the government's intent to be used for 
specific purposes. but are not restricted or committed. 
Unassigned  — represents balances that have not been assigned to other funds and that have not been 
restricted. committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. 

When expenditures are incurred for the purposes thr which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are 
available, the City reduces restricted amounts first, followed hy unrestricted amounts. When 
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned and unassigned amounts are 
available, the City reduces committed amounts first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassiped 
amounts. 

I)eferreJ Outflows'Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets. the Statement of Net Position or Balance Sheet will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial element, deterred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an outtlow of resources (expenditure) until then. The City has two items that qualify for 
this category, pension related and OPEB related deferrals, which are reported in the govemment-wide 
statement. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position or Balance Sheet will sometimes repon a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial element. deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future penod( s) and so will not be recopized 
as an inflow of resources (revenue) at that time. The City has two items that qualify for this category; 
pension and ()PEB related defen-als which are reported in the government-wide statement. The amounts 
deferred are recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become availahle. 

Pension Plan 

The City of Gonzales is a participating employer in multiple cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plans as described in Note 12. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense. information about the fiduciary net position of each of the plans, and additions taideductions 
for the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the 
plan. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

1. Summary uf Sienificant Accou mini! Policies (continued) 

For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments have been reported at fair value 
within the plan. 

Reclassification 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current period presentation. 
These reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of operations. 

Transfers In and Out 

Advances between funds which are not expected to be repaid are accounted for as transfers. In those 
cases where repayment is expected, the transfers are accounted for through the various due from and 
due to accounts. 

Due front Other Goveriunents 

The receivable amounts are made up of taxes and fees collected hy other governments to he remitted, 
amounts due on reimbursement grants, and reimbursements for expenditures from other agencies. No 
reserve for uncollectible is considered necessary for these receivables. 

lnterfund Receivables and Payables 

During the course of operations transactions occur between individual funds. These receivables and 
payables are classified as - due to or due from other funds" on the fund financial statement balance 
sheet. 

Newlv Adopted Accountirw Standard 

The City has implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Under this Statement, lease contracts, as 
defined, are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. A lessor is required to recognize a lease 
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, and a lessee recognizes a lease liability and intangible 
right to use asset, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments' 
leasing activities Lease receivables as well as lease liabilities are measured at the present value of lease 
payments er the term of each respective contract. Options to renew the lease are included in the lease 
term if reasonably certain to be exercised. 

While GASB 87 resulted in the recording of assets and liabilities that were not previously recognized, 
and changes to the accounting for lease payrnents and collections, there were effects to beginning net 
position as a result of this statement's implementation. Beginning with the implementation in the 
current fiscal year, lease payments are accounted for as repayment of debt principal and interest, and 
lease collections are accounted for as collection of receivables. 



CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

2. ('ash aud Cash Equivalents  

A summary of deposits followed: 
Cash. Under state law, the City may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the laws 
of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state or the laws of the United States. The City may 
invest in certificates of deposit of any hank domiciled or having a branch office in the state of Louisiana. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in an event of bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned 
to it. The government does not have deposit policy for custodial risk. As of May 31, 2023, these deposits 
were completely collateralized and or insured. 

cash Equivalents. The City has $4,819,684 invested in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), 
a local government investment pool. LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a nonprofit corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. Only local go‘ernments having contracted to 
participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP 
is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high quality 
investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local 
governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with LA — R.S. 33:2955. 

GASB Statement No. 40 Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure, requires disclosure of credit risk, 
custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk interest rate risk. and foreign currency risk for all 
public entity invesunents. 

LAMP is an investment pool that, to the extent practical, invest in a manner consistent with GASB 
Statement No. 79. The following facts are relevant for investment pools 

• Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's 
• Custodial credit risk: LAMP participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by shares of 

the pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized because they are not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book-entry form. The public entity's investment 
is with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore, no disclosure is required 

• Concentration of credit risk. Pooled investments are excluded from the 5 percent disclosure 
requirement. 

• Interest rate risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access 
to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk disclosure using the weighted 
average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 
days and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days or 762 days for U.S. 
Govenunent floating:variable rate investments 

• Foreign currency risk: Not applicable 

The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value. The fair value is determined on a weekly basis by 
LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same as the net asset value 
of the pool shares. 

LAMP, Inc is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of directors. LAMP 
is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3. Ca ital Assets 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended May 31, 2023, are as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

Cost of Capital 

Beeinning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

    

Land S 4,728,563 $ - S - S 4,728,563 
Construction in Proaress 815.446 9,436,127 - 10,251,573 

Buildings & Equipment 19,948,582 343.714 (32.035) 20,260,261 

Improvements 60,515,087 1,074.182 - 61,589,269 
Vehicles 5,814,856 

 

(173,338) 5,641,518 

Right to use assets-vehicles 

 

546.722 - 546,722 

Right to use assets-equipment 248,132 

 

- 248,132 
Total 92.070,600 11.400,745 (205,373) 103,266,038 

Accumulated Depreciation 51,670,122 2,668.089 (205.373) 54,132,838 
Accumulated Amortization 76,091 115,035 

 

191,126 

Total C1,746,213 2.783.124 (205.373) ';4,3 '1.964 

Total Capital Assets, net ti 40:;24.453 w 8.617.621 $ 8 48.942074 

For the year ended May 31, 2023, depreciation expense of $2.668,089 was charged to the following governmental 
functions: 

Code Enforcement $ 4,681 

Civic Center 54.572 

Streets anti drainage 288.242 
Fire 1,245,682 

General 412.517 

Police '78.643 
Recreation 383,752 

 

S 2.668.089 

For the year ended May 31. 2023, amortization expense of $115.035 was charged to the following pvernmental 
functions: 

Code Enforcement $ 11.435 

Administration 7.041 
General Gov ernment 4,965 

Streets and Drainage 20.078 

Recreation 6.782 
Buildings and Grounds 8,799 

Police 55.935 

 

$ 115,035 
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3. Capital Assets  (continued) 

Business-Type Activities: 

Cost of Capital 

Beginning 

13 dance Increases Decreases 

Ending 

Balance 

    

Land S 118,828 S - $ $ 118,828 

Constmetion in Progress 1,366,928 1,241.027 

 

2,607,955 

Buildings, Improvements, & Equipment 870,073 291.474 

 

1,161,547 

Lines, Meters, & Plants 74,043,257 286,953 

 

74,330,210 

Vehicles 406,796 

 

(20,670) 386,126 

Right to use assets-vehicles 

 

117.449 

 

117,449 

Total 76,805,857 1.936.903 (20.070 ) 78.722.115 

Accumulated Depreciation 25,325,148 1.973.479 (20.670) 30,277.957 

Accumulated Amortization 

 

12,346 

 

12.346 

Total 28.325.148 1.985,825 (20.670) 30.29(1.303 

Total Capital Assets. net $ 48,480,734 $ t 48,9.22) $ - S .48.431.812 

For the year ended May 31, 2023, depreciation and amortization expense was $1.985.825. 



CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

4. Accounts Receivable and Due from Other GoN ernments 

Receivables. 

Accounts 

Unbilled accounts 

General 

Fund 

C'apital 

Projects Fund 

Other 

Governmental 

Funds Utility Fund 

$ S - $ $ 659.772 

275,104 

Other receivables 391,537 

  

• 

Grants receivables 517,724 912,707 

  

Due from other 
govenunents 2.339,727 620,496 /97,939 155,124 

Gross receivables 3,148.988 1.533,103 /97,939 1.090,000 
Less: allowance for 
uncollectible (77,546) 

  

(126.061) 
Total receivables, net of 
allowance S 3,171,442 S 1.533,203 $ 197.939 $ 963.939 

5. Investments 

State law authorizes the City to invest in iJ.S Treasury obligations, obligations guaranteed hy federal 
agencies, U.S. government instrumentalities which are federally sponsored, ohligations of the State of 
Louisiana and other States, and certificates of deposit obligations and other investments allowed by law. 

As of May 31, 2023, the City had the following investments and maturities: 

Investment Type Fair Value Less Than 1 1-5 Over 5 years 
General Fund 

    

U.S. Agencies $ 2.869,797 $ 892.990 $ 1,566.427 S 410,380 
U.S Treasuries 4,280,932 1,823.322 2.457,610 

 

Municipal Bonds 2,053,953 517.384 1.536,569 

 

Commercial Paper 516,511 - 516,511 

 

Total General Fund 

    

Investments $ 9,721,193 $ 3.233,690 $ 6.077,117 $ 410,380 

Enterprise Fund 

    

U.S. Agencies $ 2.623,511) $ 1,229.614 S 1.393.896 $ 
U.S. Treasuries 1,668,454 403,793 1,264,661 

 

Total Enterprise 

    

Fund Investments $ 4,291,964 $ 1,633,407 $ 2,658,557 $ 

Total Investments $ 14.013,157 $ 4,867.103 $ 8.735.674 $ 410,380 
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5. Investments  (continued) 

Interest Rate Risk 

The City', investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to 
fair value losses arising from increasin2 interest rates. 

Credit Risk 

State law limits investments in securities issued, or backed by the United States Treasury obligations. U.S. 
Government instrumentalities. which are federally sponsored, and other political subdivisions The City's 
investment policy does not further limit its investment choices As of May 31. 2023, the City's investments 
in U S. Agencies were rated AA+ by S&P's Investors Service and Aaa by Moody's Investor Services. The 
City's investments in U.S. Treasuries were rated Aaa by Moody's Investors Services. The City's 
investments in Municipal Bonds were rated AA+. AA. and AA- by S&P's Investors Sen ices and rated 
Al „&a 1 . Aa2 and Aa3 by Moody's Investors Services. The City's investments in Commercial Paper were 
rated AAA. AA+. and AA- by S&P's Investors Services. A portion of the City's investments in U.S. 
Agencies and U.S. Treasuries were unrated. These investments made up 21% of U.S. Agencies and 49°.;. 
Of U.S. Treasuries. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer. More than 5 percent of the 
City's investments are in US Treasury, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp, Federal National Mortgage 
Assoc. Federal Home Loan Bank, and Municipal Bonds. These investments are 41%, 8%. 17°;), 10%, and 
15%. respectively of the City's total investments. 

6. .,1d Valorem Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes attach an enforceable hen on property ofJanuary 1 of each vear. Taxes are levied by the 
City in September or Octoher, and are actually billed to the taxpayers in November Billed taxes hecome 
delinquent on January 1 of the following year. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are hudgeted in the year 
billed. 

The Ascension Parish Sheriff hills and collects property taxes using the assessed values determined by the 
tax assessor of Ascension Parish. The Ascension Parish Sheriff remits the taxes to the City. 

For the year ended May 31, 2023 taxes of 8.55 mills were levied on property with taxable assessed 
valuations totaling $17.6182,310 and were dedicated as follows. 

General corporate purposes 5.28 mills 
Fire department 3.27 mills 

Total taxes lel, ied were $1.528.842. Property tax millage rates are adopted in the calendar year in which 
the taxes are levied and recorded. All taxes are due and collectihle when the assessment rolls are filed on 
or before December 31 of the current year, and become delinquent thereafter. 
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7. Transfers and ( 'ontributions to/from Other Funds  

Transfers and contributions to from Other Funds at May 31. 2023 consist of the fo1lowin: 

 

Transfers and 
Contributions In 

Transfers and 
Contributions Out 

General Fund 26,504 $ 3.500,000 
Capital Projects Fund 5,535,633 3.275.250 
Other Govermnental Funds 137,699 

 

Enterprise Fund 3,137,551 2.062.137 

 

$ 8,837,387 $ 8,837,387 

Transfers and contributions to and from the different hinds are to provide supplemental funds for fund 
operations. At the end of the vear, the General fitnd reported a due to Capital Projects fimd $481.157. 

8. Restricted Assets 

Restncted assets, which consist of cosh and cash cciuiva1ents and investments at May 31. 2023 were 
applicable to the followine. 

Other 
Enterprise Fund Government Funds  

Customer Deposits $ 489,331 

Cash equnalents-Money Market 1.945 175.491 

Int estments 611.586 

Cash equivalents-LAMP 1,861,323  

Total restricted assets 1.102,502 2.030,514 

9. Long-Term Liabilities 

Lease Obligations  
The City leases various equipment and vehicles These leases range in terms from 3 to 5 years and payment 
terms vary in both frequency and amounts. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 87. Leaves, a liability 
has been recorded for the present value of lease payments over the lease term for each agreement As of 
May 31, 2023, the combined alue of the lease liabilities was $732,848. In determining the present values, 
discount rates of 6% to 7% were applied. depending on the duration of the lease agreement and other 
factors. The recorded combined value of the right to use assets as of the end of the current fiscal year was 
$912,303 and combined accumulated amortization of these assets was $203,472. 
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9. Long-Term Liahilities (continued) 

Notes Payable 
Notes payable at May 31, 2023, is comprised of the following: 

The City has a note payahle to a Company, due in May 2029, payahle in 
monthly installments of $25.000, with interest at 5.3%, secured hy 
equipment. $ 1,539,008 

The City has a note payable to a Company, due in Apnl 2024, payable in an 
annual installment of $46,874, with interest at 3.88%, secured hy vehicles. 45,123 

The City has a note payable to a Company, due in November 2024, payable 
m an annual installment of $18,282, with interest at 3.88%. secured by 
vehicles 

Total notes payahle 
Less: current portion 
Net long-term liabilities 

Bonds Payable 
Bonds payable at May 31, 2023, is comprised of the followinL,  individual issue 

Utility obligation bonds:  
515,170.000 Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds dated September 22, 2014, 
due m annual installments of $780,000 to $866.000 through March 1, 2035. 
interest at 0.95%, secured hy collection of sales taxes. 

52,400,000 Taxable Sales Tax Bonds. Series 2022 dated May 24, 2022, due in 
annual installments of $69,000 to $129,000 through March 1. 2042, interest at 
1.95%, secured by collection of sales taxes. 

Occupancy tax hond:  
S4,50i),000 I;ixahlz Hotel Occupancy Tax Bond, Series 2021 dated April 1. 
2021, due in annual installments of $83,000 to $332,000 through May I, 2024. 
interest at 3.88%, secured by collection of occupancy taxes. 

Total bonds payahle 
Less: current portion 
Net long-term liabilities 

34,519 
1.61,670 
(285.8)36) 

S 1.312,78.4 

S 9.090,472 

1.,985,475 

5,392 
11,081,339 

(876,702) 
S 10.204,637 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

9. Lono-Term Liabilities (contmued) 

Cham2cs in Long.-Term Liabilities 

The following is a summary of lona-term liabilities transactions of the City of Gonzales for the year ended 
May 31. 2023: 

Governmental activities: 

Balance at 
June 1. 1011 Ad(htions Reductions 

Balance at 
May 31, 2023 

I)ue 
Within 

One Year 

     

Compensated absences $ 529,400 $ 54,667 $ (54,867) $ 529,200 $ 
Notes payable 205.757 

 

(126,095) 79.662 62,064 
Lease liabilities 169,146 546.772 (93,778) 622,080 145,549 
Other post-employment 
benefits 7,733.289 406.409 (794,853) 7.344.845 

 

Net pension liahility 10,752,905 8.799,966 

 

19,552,871 

 

Bonds payable 88.392 

 

(83,0(!0) 5.39,  5,39/ 
Total S 19,478,889 $ 9,807,814 $ (1.152.593) $ 28,134.050 $ /13,005 

Business-type activities: 

     

Compensated absences 66,025 $ 13,760 $ (25.238) $ 54.547 

 

Notes payahle 1,751,301 

 

(212,293) 1,539,008 113,872 
Lease liabilities 

 

117.449 (6,681) 110.768 20,289 
Other post-employment 
benefits 1,873,479 135,470 (264,951) 1,743,998 

 

Net pension liability 1,939.084 1,135.339 

 

3.074.423 

 

Bonds payable 10.493.956 1.430.992 (849,(100) 11.075.948 871,311 

Total 16.17'3.845 S 2,833,010 (1,358,163) x 17,598.692 S1,115,422 

The future principal and interest lease payments as of May 31, 2023, are as follows: 
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

Year ending May 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest 
/014 S 145,549 S 4/.999 S -)0.189 S 8.045 
/015 149,852 31,758 21,954 6.380 
2026 135,769 20,511 13.757 4,577 
2027 121,286 15,374 25.707 2.627 
/018 69,624 2,142 19.061 613 

 

$ 622,080 $112,784 $ 110.768 S 11./41 

The future principal and interest note payments as of May 31, 2023, are as follows. 
Govermnental Activities Business-Type Activities 

Year ending May 31 Priucipal Interest Principal Interest 
/0/4 S 62,064 's 3,091 S 1 /3.82' S 76,182 
'0)5 17,59ti 683 235,977 64.028 
2026 

  

148,792 51,213 
/017 

  

261304 37.701 
/()18 

  

276.548 23.456 
2029 

  

291,565 8,438 

 

S 79,66/ S 3,774 S1.539,008 5261.018 
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9. Lonu-Term Liabilities (continued) 

I he annual requirements to amortize bonds outstanding as of May 31, 2023. are as follows: 
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

Year(s) ending 
NIay 31 Principal Interest Priucipal Interest 
/014 S 5.391 S 209 $ 871,311 $ 123,452 
/0"s 

  

8,880.350 114,302 
2026 

  

890,443 105,045 
2027 

  

900,581 95,668 
2028 

  

909,779 86,174 
20/9-'033 

  

4,703,731 284,372 
2034-2038 

  

1,422,748 78,940 
2039-2042 

  

497.004 14,830 

 

S 5..397 $ 209 S11,075,947 S 902,783 

Under the terms of the bonds, the City is required to establish a Bond Reserve and Sinking fund. As of May 
31, 2023. the City is in compliance with these requirements. 

1(1. Sales and Use and Occupancy Tax  

The City has the following sales and use and occupancy taxes in existence as of May 31, 2023: 

On September 10. 1966, a 1 percent sales tax was passed to be used for streets, sidewalks, drainage, garbage, 
utilities, parks and recreation, fire department, and acquisition and maintenance of public buildings including 
City Hall and Civic Center. 

On April 1. 1989. a 1/2  percent sales tax was passed to he used for sewer, water, drainage, streets, and gas. 
This tax is pledged to the payment of the Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds dated March 1, 2014. On 
September 22, 2014. the City adopted a First Supplemental Bond Ordinance which extends the collection of 
the Y.: percent sales tax for the purpose of acquiring, constniction and installment of improvements. 
extensions and replacements to the City's wastewater treatment and disposal system. On April 13, 2020, the 
City adopted a Second Supplemental Bond Ordinance authorizing the issuance of bonds which extends the 
collection of the 1:2 percent sales tax for the purpose of paying costs of acquiring and constructing additions 
and improvements to the City's drinking water system and paying costs of issuance. This tax is set to expire 
upon the retirement of any bonds issued payable. 

On July 1, 2001, an additional percent sales tax was passed to be used for fire, police, and sanitation. 

On May 16, 2005, proceeds frotn the 1% sales and use tax authorized on September 10, 1966 and the 1;1: 
percent sales and use authorized on Apnl 1. 1989 collected within the Gonzales Economic Development 
District No. I were dedicated to the Industrial Development Board of the City of Gonzales. Louisiana, Inc. 
to promote economic development. 

On June 1, 2012, an additional I% sales and use tax was passed to he used for funding economic 
de‘elopment projects selected by the Tanger Mall Economic Development District. This tax is only assessed 
in the Tanger Mall Economic Development District only. The tax is set to expire on May 31, 2032 
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10. Sales and Use and Occupancy Tax  (continued) 

On May 29, 2018 an ordinance was adopted to authorize the execution of a cooperative endeavor agreement 
by and among the City of Gonzales (City), Conway Economic Developrnent District of the City of Gonzales 
(EDD) and Conway Development LLC (Company) relating to the collection, use and expenditure of a 1% 
sales and use tax and a 1% hotel occupancy tax (EDD Tax) to be levied in the district. This tax is dedicated 
to the district to reimburse the Company for Phase 1 & 2 infrastructure improvements. 

On December 8, 2018, a hotel occupancy tax of two percent was passed to be used for the purpose of 
financing, construction, maintenance and operation of an event and conference center for the City. The tax 
is effective April 1, 2019 for perpetuity. 

11. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The City participates in the State of Louisiana Deferred Compensation Plan, (an IRC 457 deferred 
compensation plan). The plan covers all full-time employees. The City does not rnatch ernployee 
contributions. 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

The City of Gonzales is a participating employer in three cost-sharing defined multiple ernployer defined 
benefit pension plans that include the Municipal Ernployees' Retirernent Systern of Louisiana (MERS), the 
Municipal Police Ernployees' Retirernent System (MPERS) and the Louisiana State Ernployees' Retirernent 
Systern (LASERS). Article X, Section 29 (F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the authority to 
establish and arnend benefit provisions of the State-wide plans to the State Legislature. Each systern is 
adrninistered by a separate board of trustees. 

Each of the State-wide Systems issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial 
staternents and required supplernentary information for the system. These reports rnay be obtained by 
writing, calling or downloading the reports as follows: 

MERS: 
7937 Office Park Blvd. 
Baton Rouge, LA 
70809 
(225) 925-4810 
www.mersla.corn 

MPERS: 
7722 Office Park Blvd. 
Suite 200 
Baton Rouge, LA 70809 
(225) 929-7411 
www.lampers.com  

LASERS: 
P.O. Box 44213 
Baton Rouge, LA 
70804-4213 
(225) 922-6000 
www.lasersonline.org 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans  (continued) 

The City implemented Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB ) Statement 68 on Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Statement 71 on Pension Transition for Contributions Made 
Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an Amendment of GASB 68. These standards require the City the 
record itS proportional share of each of the pension plans Net Pension Liability and report the following 
disclosures: 

Plan Descriptions: 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS) 

The Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS) is the administrator of a cost sharing 
multiple-employer defined henetit pension plan. The System was originally estahlished by Act 356 of the 
1954 regular session of the Legislature of the State of Louisiana. The System provides retirement benefits 
to employees of all incorporated villages, towns and cities within the State which do not have their own 
retirement system and which elect to become members of the System. For the year ended June 30, 2022. 
there were 88 contributing municipalities in Plan A and 68 in Plan B The City of Gonzales is a participant 
in Plan A only. 

The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for 2eneral information purposes 
only. 

Membership is mandatory as a condition of employment beginning on the date employed if the employee 
is on a permanent basis working at least thirty-five hours per week. Those individuals paid jointly by a 
participating employer and the parish are not eligible for membership in the System with exceptions as 
outlined in the statutes. 

Any member of Plan A who was hired before January 1. 2013 can retire providing the member meets one 
of the following criteria: 

1. Any age with twenty-five (25) or more years of creditable service. 
7. Age 60 with a minimum of ten (10) years creditable service. 
3. Anv age with five (5) years of creditable service eligible for disability benefits. 
4. Survivor's benefits require five (5) years creditable service at death of member. 
5. Any age with 20 years of creditable service. exclusive of military seruce with an actuarially 

reduced early benefit. 

Eligibility for Retirement for Plan A members hired on or after January 1, 2013 is as tbllows: 

1. Age 67 with seven (7) or more years of creditable service 
Age 62 with ten (10) or more years of creditable service 

3. Age 55 with thirty (30) or more years of creditable service 
4. Any age with twenty-five (25) years of creditable service, exclusive of military service and unused 

side leave. However. any member retiring under this suhsection shall have their benefit actuarially 
reduced from the earliest age of which the member would be entitles to a vested deferred benefit 
under any provision of this section, if the member had continued service to the aL,e 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans  (continued) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement SNstem of Louisiana (MFRS) (continued) 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any mernber of Plan A shall consist of an 
amount equal to three percent of the member's monthly average final compensation multiplied by his years 
of creditable service. However. under certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited 
to specified amounts. 

Upon death of any mernber of Plan A with fne (5) or more years of creditable service. not eligible for 
retirement, the plan provides fim benefits for the surviving spouse and, or minor children as outlined in the 
statutes. Any member of Plan A. who is eligible for normal retirement at tirne of death and who few, es a 
surviving spouse will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of the surviving 
spouse on the date of death. Such benefits will begin only upon proper application and are paid in lieu of 
any other survivor benefits. 

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirernent allowance, any member of Plan A 
who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DR()P) for up to 
three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in the plan, employer contrihutions are 
payable by employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement henetits that would be payable. had the 
person elected to cease employment and received a service retirement allowance, are paid into the DROP 
Fund. Interest is earned when the member has completed DROP participation. Interest earnings are based 
upon the actual rate of return on the investments identified as DROP funds for the period. In addition, no 
cost-of-living increases are payable to participants until employment which make them eligible to become 
members of the System has been terminated for at least one full year Upon termination of employment 
prior to or at the end of a specified period of participation, a participant in the Drop may receive, at his 
option. a lurnp surn from the account equal to the payrnent if approied by the board of tnistees. If a 
participant dies during participation in the DRC)P, a lump sum equal to the halance in his account shall be 
paid to his named beneficiary, or if none. to his estate. If employment is not terminated at the end of the 
three years, payments into the DROP ftmd cease and the person resurnes active contributing membership 
in the System. 

For Plan A, a rnernber shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he has at least five years 
of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement and has been officially certified as disabled hy 
the State Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement caused by disability. a member of Plan A shall be 
paid a disability benefit equal to the lesser of forty-five percent of his final average compensation or three 
percent of his final average compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service whichever is greater 
or an amount equal to three percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his years 
of creditable service projected to his earliest normal retirement age. 

NIunicipal Police Emplovees' Retirement Svstem (MPERSI 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer plan. Membership in the System is mandatory for any full-time police officer employed 
by a municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to make arrests, 
proi, Wing he or she does not have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. 
The System provides retirement benefits for municipal police officers 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

lunicipal Pulice Employees' Retirernent System (MYERS) (continued) 

The projections of benefit payrnents in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to 
be pro% ided to current active and inactive employees through the System in accordance with benefit terrns 
and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. Benefit 
prin. isions are authurized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211 — 11.2233. 

The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information 
purposes only. 

Membership prior tu January 1, 2013: A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a 
member of the System and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 20 years of creditahle 
service and is age 50 or has 12 years creditable service and is age 55. A member is eligible for early 
retirement after he has been a member of the Systern for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an 
actuarially reduced benefit. Benefit rates are three and one-third percent of average tinal compensation 
(average monthly earnings during thr highest 36 consecutive months or jouied months if service was 
interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. Upon the death 
of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving spouses and nunor 
children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes. the benefits range from forty to sixty percent of 
the member's average final compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, each child under age 
eighteen receives benetits equal to ten percent of the member's average final compensation or $2O1.00 per 
month, whichever is geater. 

Membership Commencing January 1, 2013. Member eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, 
disability and survivor benefits are based on Hazardous Duty and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under 
the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been• a member of 
the System and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 
55. Under the Non-Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been 
a member of the System and has 30 years of creditable service at any age, 25 years of creditable service at 
age 55. or 11) years of creditable service at age 60. Under both sub plans, a member is eligible for early 
retirement after he has been a member of the System for 20 years of creditable service at any age, with an 
actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. Under the Hazardous and Non-Hamrdous Duty sub plans. the 
benefit rates are three percent and two and a half percent, respectively, of average tinal compensation 
(average monthly earnings during thr highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service was 
interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. Upon death of 
an active contributing member. or disability retiree. the plan provides for surviving spouses and nnnor 
children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the benefits range from twenty-five to fifty-five 
percent of the rnember's average tinal compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, each child under 
agr eighteen receives ten percent of average final compensation or S200 per month whichever is greater. 
If deceased inetnber had less than ten years of service, heneficiary will receive a refund of employee 
contributions only. 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Phins  (continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System INEPERS)  (contmued) 

I)Cferred Retirement Option Plan. A member is eligihle to elect to enter the deferred retirement option 
plan (DROP) when he is eligihle for regular retirement based on the membert4' suh plan participation. Upon 
filing the application for the program, the employee's active membership in the System is terminated. At 
the entry date into the DROP, the employee and employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited 
into the DROP account is equal to the benetit coinputed under the retirement plan elected by the participant 
at date of application. The duration of participation in the DROP is thirty-six months or less. If employment 
is terminated after the three-year period, the participant may receive his benefits by lutnp sum payment or 
a true annuity If employment is not terminated, active contributing membership into the System shall 
resutne and upon later termination, he shall receive additional retirement benefit based on the additional 
service. For those eligible to enter DROP prior to January 1, 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest 
subsequent to the termination of DROP participation at a rate of half of one percentage point below the 
percentage rate of return of the System's investment portfolio as certified hy the actuary on an annual basis 
but will never lose tnoney. For those eligihle to enter DROP subsequent to January 1, 2004, an irrevocable 
election is made to earn interest based on the System's investment portfolio return or a money market 
investment return. This could result in a negative earnings rate being applied to the account. If the member 
elects a money market investment return, the funds are transferred to a govenunent money market account. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan: In 1999. the State Legislature authorized the System to establish an Initial 
Benefit Option program. Initial Benefit Option is available to members who are eligihle Ibr regular 
retirement and have not participated in DROP. The Initial Benefit Option program provides both a one-
time single sum payment of up to 36 months of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly 
retirement benefit for life. Interest is computed on the balance based on same criteria as DROP. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS) 

The Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established by Section 401 of Title 11 of the Louisiana 
Revised Statutes (La. R.S 11:401) to provide retirement allowances and other benefits to eligible state 
officers, employees, and their heneticiaries. 

The following is a description of the plan and it; benefits and is provided for general information purposes 
only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans  (continued) 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement Sritem (LASERS)  i continued) 

Eliitibility Requirements  

All state employees, except those specifically excluded by statute, become members of the System's 
Defined Benefit Plan (DBP) as a condition of employment, unless they elect to continue as a contributing 
member in any other retirement system for which they remain eligible for membership. Certain elected 
officials and ofticials appointed hy the Governor may, at their option, become members of LASERS. Also, 
qualifying unclassified state employees may have made an irrevocable election to participate in the 
Optional Retirement Plan (CRP) between July 12, 1999 and December 7, 2007, when the plan closed. 

Retirement 

The age and years of creditable service required in order for a member to retire with full benetits are 
stablished by statute, and vary depending on the member to retire with full benefits are established by 
statute, and vary depending on the member's hire date, employer, and job classification. The majority of 
our rank and tile members may either retire with full benefits at any age upon completing 30 years of 
creditable ser‘ ice and at age 60 upon completing ten years of creditable sen dependine on their plan. 
Additionally. members may choose to retire with 20 years of service at any aL,e, with an actuarially reduced 
benefit. The basic annual retirement benefit for members is equal to 2.5% to 3.5% of average compensation 
multiphed by the number of years of credible service. 

Average compensation is defined as the member's average annual earned compensation for the highest 36 
consecutive months of employment for members employed prior to July 1, 2006. For members hired July 
1, 2006 or later, average compensation is based on the member's average annual earned compensation for 
the highest 60 consecutive months of employment. The maximum aiumal retirement henefit cannot exceed 
the lesser of 100% of average compensation or a certain specified dollar amount of actuarially determined 
monetary limits, which vary depending upon the member's age at retirement. Judges. court officers, and 
certain elected officials receive an additional annual retirement benefit equal to 1 0% of average 
compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in their respective capacity. As an 
alternative to the basic retirement benefits, a member may elect to receive their retirement throughout their 
life, with certain benefits being paid to their desienated beneficiary after their death. 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans  (continued) 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS) (continued) 

Act 992 of the 2010 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session, changed the benefit structure for LASERS 
members hired on or after January 1, 2011. This resulted in three new plans• regular, hazardous duty, and 
judges. The new regular plan includes regular members and those members who were formally eligible to 
participate in specialty plans, excluding hazardous duty and judges Regular members and judges are 
eligible to retire at age 60 after five years of creditable service and, may also retire at any age, with reduced 
benefit, after 20 years of creditable service. Hazardous duty members are eligible to retire with twelve 
years of creditable service at age 55, 25 years of creditable service at any aee or with a reduced benefit 
after 20 years of creditable service. Average compensation will be based on the member's average annual 
earned compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment for all three new plans. 
Members in the regular plan will receive a 2.5% accrual rate. hazardous duty plan a 3.33% accrual rate, 
hazardous duty plan a 3.33% accrual rate, and judges a 3.5% accrual rate. The extra 1.0% accrual rate for 
each year of service fim court officers. the governor, lieutenant governor, legislators, House clerk. sergeants 
at anns, or Senate secretarv, employed after January 1. 2011. who are hazardous duty employees have the 
option to transition to the new hazardous duty plan. 

A member leaving employment before attaining minimum retirement age, but after completing certain 
minimum service requirements. becomes eligible for a benefit pro‘ided the member lives to the minimum 
service retirement age, and does not withdraw their accumulated contributions. The minimum service 
requirement for benefits vanes depending upon the member's employer and service classification but 
generally is ten years of service. 

I)eferred Benefits 

The State Legislature authorized LASERS to establish a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP). When 
a member enters DROP, their status changes from active member to retiree even though they continue to 
work and draw their salary for a period of up to three years. The election is irrevocable once participation 
begins. During DROP participation, accumulated retirement benefits that would have been paid to each 
retiree are separately tracked. For members who entered DROP prior to January 1, 2004, interest at a rate 
of one-half percent less than the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero) will be 
credited to the retiree after participation ends. At that time, the member must choose among availahle 
alternatives for the distribution of benefits that have accumulated in the DR()P account. Members who 
enter DROP on or after January 1, 2004, are required to participate in LASERS Self-Directed Plan (SDP) 
which is administered by a third-party provider. The SDP allows DROP participants to choose from a 
menu of investment options for the allocation of their DROP balances Participants may diversify their 
investments by choosing from an approved list of mutual funds with different holdings, management 
styles, and risk factors. 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans  (continued) 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS)  tcontinued) 

Members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may elect to receive at the time 
of retirement an initial benefit option (IBO) in an amount tip to 36 months of benefits, with an actuarial 
reduction of their future benefits. For members who selected the IBO option prior to January 1, 2004, such 
amount may be withdrawn or remain in the IBO account earning interest at a rate of one-half percent less 
than the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero). Those members who select the 
IBO on or after January 1, 2004, are required to enter the SDP as described. 

Disability Benefits 

All members with ten or more years of credited service who become disahled may receive a maximum 
disability retirement henetit equivalent to the regular retiretnent formula without reduction by reason of 
age 

Upon reaching age 60, the disability retiree may receive a regular retirement benefit by making application 
to the Board of Tnistees. 

For injuries sustained in the line of duty. hazardous duty personnel in the Hazardous Duty Services Plan 
will receive a disability benefit equal to 75% of final average compensation. 

Survivor's Benefit 

Certain eligible surviving dependents receive benefits based on the deceased member's compensation and 
their relationship to the deceased. The deceased member who was in state sen ice at the time of death must 
hme a minimum of five years of service credit. at least two of which were earned immediately prior to 
death. or who had a minimum of twenty years of service credit reL,ardless of when earned in order for a 
benefit to be paid to a minor or handicapped child. Benefits are payable to an unmarried child until age 
18, or age 23 if the child remains a full-time student. The aforementioned minimum service credit 
requirement is ten years for a surviving spouse with no minor children, and benefits are to be paid for life 
to the spouse or qualified handicapped child. 

Funding Policy 

Article X, Section 29 (E) (2) (a) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the Legislature the authority 
to determine employee contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially determined using statutorily 
established methods on an annual basis and are constitutionally required to cover the employer's portion 
of the normal cost and provide for the amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Employer 
contributions are adopted by the Legislature annually upon recommendation of the Public Retirement 
Systems' Actuarial Conuninee (PRSAC). 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans  (continued) 

Contributions to the plans are required and determined by State statute (which may be amended) and are 
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll. The contribution rates in effect for the vear ended May 31, 
2023, for the City and covered employees were as lidlows: 

 

City Employees 
Municipal Employers' Retirement System — Plan A 29.50% 10.00% 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

All employees hired prior to 01'01 2013 and all 
hazardous duty employees hired atier 01 01/2013 31.15% 10.00% 

Non-hazardous duty hired after 01;01;2013 31.15% 8.00% 
Employees receiving compensation below poverty 

  

Guidelines of US Department of Health 33.75% 7.50% 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System - 

  

Judges hired prior to 01. 01;2011 43.80% 13.00% 

The contrihutions made to the Systems for the past three years ending on May 31, were as follows: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement 
20 13 .70 - ) 2021 

   

System: Plan A $ 1.653.140 $ 1,536,405 $ 1,475,691 
Municipal Police Employees' 

Retirement System s 1M39,903 $ 959,198 $ 1,036,911 
Louisiana State Employees' 

Retirement System x 3,110 3,061 3,076 

 

1.696,153 $ 2,498,664 $ 2,515,678 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflow% of Resources and Deferred Inflow% of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

The following schedule lists the City's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liahility allocated lyv each 
of the pension plans based on the June 30, 2022 measurement date. The City uses this measurement to 
record its Net Pension Liahility and associated amounts as of May 31, 2023 in accordance with GASB 
Statement 68. The schedule includes the proportionate share allocation rate used at June 30, 2022 along 
with the change compared to the June 30, 2021 rate. The City's proportion of the Net Pension Liability 
was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contrihutions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Phms  (continued) 

Ciovernmental Activities: 
Municipal Employees' Retirement 
System of Louisiana: 

Net Pension 
Liability at 

June 30. "7022 
Rate at 

June 30. -7077 

Increase 
(Decrease) to 
June 30. /011 

Rate 

    

Plan A 

 

8.750,282 2.847108% 0.265126% 
Municipal Police Employees' 

    

Retirement System 

 

10,775.1'3 1.054144% (1.024221% 
Louisiana State Employees' 

    

Retirement System 

 

27,366 0.00036% -0.000010% 

 

ti; 19,557,S71 

  

Business-type Activities: 

    

Municipal Employees' Retirement 

    

System of Louisiana: 

    

Plan A s 3,074,473 2.847108% 0.265126% 

The following schedule lists each pension plan's reco2nized pension expense (benefit) of the City for the 
year ended May 31, 2023: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement 
System of Louisiana: 

Pension Expense 
(Benefit) 

 

Plan A S 304,043 
Municipal Police Employees' 

 

Retirement System 1.132,870 
Louisiana State Employees' 

 

Retirement System 217 

 

S 1,437,130 

At May 31, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual expenence 

 

67,183 (133,101) 
Change of assumptions 

 

486,737 (80,146) 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 

 

3,893,502 

 

Changes in proportion and differences hetween employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

 

1,213,977 (14,380) 
Differences between allocated and actual contributions 

  

(112.653) 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

 

2,696,153 

 

Total 5 8,357,547 (340.2M0 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Phins  (continued) 

Summary totals of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources hy pension plan: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

  

System of Louisiana: Plan A 4.366.87(1 $ { 164.554) 
Municipal Police Employees' 

  

Retirement System 3.984,790 (175.695) 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement 

  

System 5,887 (31) 

 

8.357,547 $ (340.280) 

The following table lists the City's contributions to each retirement system that is reported as deferred 
outflow of resources related to pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement period of June 
30. 2022 which will be recognized as a reduction in Net Pension Liability in the year ended May 31, 2023. 
The following schedule list the pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement period for each 
pension plan: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana: 

Subsequent 
Contributions 

 

Plan A $ 1.653,140 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 1,039,903 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement Systern 3,110 

 

2,696,153 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year MERS MPERS LASERS Total 
2023 $ 80-1,959 $ 911,910 $ 1,352 $ 1.718,221 
'014 657,094 682,948 450 1,340,492 
2025 180,844 168,075 (551) 348.368 
2026 906,279 1,006,259 1,495 1,914,033 

 

$ 1.549,176 S 2.769.192 S 2.746 $ 5.3-'1.114 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans  (continucd) 

Actuarial Assumptions 
A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension hability for 

each pension plan as of June 30, 2022 are as folkiws: 

MERS MPERS  LASERS      

Actuarial Cost Method 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 

Investment Rate of 
Return 

Inflation Rate  

Entry Age Normal Cosi 

3 years-Plan A 

6 85% ner of pension 
plan investment 

expense, including 
inflation 
2.50°1; 

Enhy Age Normal Cost 

4 years 

6.75% ner of investnient 
expenses 

1 . 5110 0 

June 30, 2022 

Entry Age Noimal 

2 years 

7.25°0 per annum, net of 
investment expense 

2.30% 

Valuation Date hme 30, 2022 June 30, 2022 

Mortality PubG-2010(B) Healthy 
Retiree Table set equal 
ro 120°0 for males and 
females, each adjusted 
using their iespectiye 
male and female 
MP2O1S scales. PubG-

 

2010(B) Einpl nyee 
Table set equal tn 120°0 
ru males and females, 
each adjusted using 
theu respective male 
and female MP2018 
scales PONS-2010(B) 
Disabled Retiree table 
set equal to 120% tur 
males aud feuiales with 
the full generational 
MP2018 scale. 

Pub-2010 Public Retirement 
Plan Mnrtality Table for Safety 
Below-Median Healthy 
Retirees multiplied by 115,o 
for males and 125% for 
females. each with full 
generational projection using 
the MP2019 scale was used. 
Pub-2010 Public Retireinein 
Plans Klortality Tahle for 
Safety Disable Retirees 
multiplied by 10.50i, for males 
and 115% for females, each 
with fidl generatioua l 
projection usiug the MP2019 
scale was used Pub-2010 
Public Retheruent Plans 
Mortality Table for Safety 
Below-Median Einployees 
multiplied hy 115% foi males 
and 125°0 foi females, each 
with full generational 
projection using the MP2019 
scales was used. The mortality 
late assumption used was set 
based upnn an experience 
study performed hy the mior 
actuary un plan data for the 
period ofJuly 1. 2014 tluough 
June 30. 2019. and review uf 
similar law enforceinent 
mortality 

Non-disabled members-
mortality rates for 2020 were 
based on die RP-2014 Blue 
Cnilar (malesffemales) and 
White Collar (females) Healthy 
Annuitant Tables pro)ected on a 
fully generational hasis by 
Mortality Improvement Scale 
MP-2018 Disabled members - 
mortality rates based on the RP-
2000 Disabled Refine Mortality 
Table, with uo projection for 
moi rainy n nprov ement 
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Salary incleases wele projecred based ou a 
2014-2ill 8 experience study of the System's 
members The salary increase ranges for 
specific types of members are: 

Membei 
Type 

Lnwer 
Range 

Uppei 
Ranee 

Regular 3 0°0 12.8% 
Judges 2 6% 5.1% 

Corrections 3 6% 13.8°.> 
Hazardous 3.6go 13.8% 

Duty 
wildlife 3 6'0 I 3.8°0 

The present alue of future retirement 
benefits is based on benefits cuirently heing 
paid by the System and includes previously 
granted costs of living increases. The 
projected benefit payments do not include 
par% isions for potentaal future Increases not 
yet authorized by the Board of Trustees as 
they were deemed liot to be substantively 
automatic 

CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans  (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

 MERS  MPERS  LASERS 
Termination. 
Disability, aud 
Retirenient 

    

Termination. disability. and retirement 
assumptions were projected based on a five-

 

year (2014-2l ll experietice study of the 
Systeas lumbers. 

Plan A 
1-4 years of service - 6.4°(i 
More than 4 yews of service - 
4.5° 

The System is authorized 
under stare law to grant a cost 
of living increase ro members 
who have heen rented fnr a 
least one yean. The adjustment 
cannot exceed 2% of the 
aetiree's original benefit for 
each full calendaa yeai smce 
retirement and may ouly be 
granted if sufficient funds are 
available from Investment 
income in excess of normal 
equirements State law 

allows the System to grant 
additioua] cost of living 
increases to a]l retirees and 
beneficiaries who are age 
sixty-five and above equal to 
2% of the benefit being 
received on October 1, 1977 
or the original benefit, if 
retirement commenced after 
that date 

Years of Salary 
Service Growth 

Rate 
1-7 12..30% 

Above 2 4.70% 

The present value of future 
ietirement benefits is hased on 
benefits currently being paid by 
the System and includes 
previously granted cost-of-living 
am:leases The present values do 
not include provisions fin 
poteurial future increases not yet 
authorized hy die Bnard of 
Trustees. 

Salary 
Increases 

Cost uf Living 
Adjustments 

MERS - The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an 
experience study for the period July 2013 through June 30. 2018. 

MPERS - The actuanal assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 1, aluation were hased on the assumptions 
used in the June 30, 2019 actuarial fimding ‘aluation and were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period of July 1. 2014 through June 30, 2019. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENIENTS 

12. I)etined Benefit Pension Plans t continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

LASERS - The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an 
experience study for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2018. 

The following table provides a summary of the hest estimates of arithmetic 'geometric real rates of return 
for each major asset class included in each of the Retirement Systems target asset allocations as of June 
30, 2022: 

:1,set (1,1,o 

 

Target Allocation 

 

Long-Tenn Expected Real Rare of Return 

MERS MPERS LASERS MERS )t1PERS LASERS 
Public equity 53% - 0P a 2.3 l'!0 

  

Equities 

 

56°'o 54% - 3.60"-o 10 34% 
Puhlic fixed income 38% 

 

- 1.65% 

  

Fixed income 

 

31°0 20% 

 

0.85% 6 52°0 
Alternatives 9°0 14°o 2Vo 0.39°0 0.95po 8.30°0 
Cash 

  

- - 

 

0 39°0 
Other - 

 

- - 

 

- 
Total 11)0u0 I 00',, 0100 ,. 

 

5.40Po 5 O1°0 

Inflation 

   

2.60" 2.66% 2 300 

Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

  

6.05% 8.06°.0 34"o 

Discount Rate 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions 
will be made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to 
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those 
assumptions, the pension plan's tiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liahility. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for MERS, MPERS and 
LASERS was 6.85%, 6.75% and 7 25%, respectively for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following table presents the City's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (NPL) using the 
discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the City's proportionate share of the NPL would 
be if it were calculated usmg a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point 
higher than the current rate used by each of Ille Retirement Systems: 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES  TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

1.0% Decrease 
Current 

Discount Rate 1 Increase 
MERS A 

   

Rates 5.85'kb 6.85% 7.85% 
City's Share of NPL $ 15.729.165 $ 11.824,705 !i; 8.525.559 

MPERS 
Rates 

 

6.75% 7.75% 
City's Share of NPL l 5.083, '49 S 10.775,223 $ 7,176.595 

LASERS 

   

Rates 6.25% 7.15% 8.25% 
City's Share of NPL 34,435 S 27,366 $ 20,921 

ables to the Pension Plan 

'ity had the following amounts due to each of the retirenient systems at May 31. 2023: 
MERS $196,559 
MPERS $ 42,047 

Support of Non-employer Contributing Entities 

Contributions received by a pension plan from non-employer contnhuting entities that are not in a special 
funding situation are recorded as revenue by the respective pension plan. The City recognizes revenue in 
an amount equal to their proportionate share of the total contnhutions to the pension plan from these non-
employer contributing entities. The City recognized revenue as a result of support recen ed from MERS 
of $202.755 and MPERS of $234,496. 

13. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

Plan tksertption — The City of Gonzales (the City) provides certain continuing health care and life 
insurance benefits for its retired employees. The City of Gonzales's OPEB Plan {the OPEB Plan) is a 
single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the City. The authority to establish andior 
amend the obligation of the employer, employees and retirees rests with the City. No assets are 
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Codification Section P52 Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions—Reporting j0r Benefits Not 
Provided Through Trusts That Meet Specified Criteriu—Defined Benefit. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

13. Other Post-Emplovment Benefits (OPEB) (continued) 

Benefits Provided — Medical benefits are provided throueh a comprehensive medical plan and are made 
available to employees upon actual retirement. The employees are covered by a retirement system whose 
retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows. 25 years of service at any age: or. age 60 
and 1() years of service. 

Employees covered by benefit terms - At Niav 31. 2023. the following employees were covered hy the 
benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 1) 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 

 

Active employees 116 

 

138 

Total OPEB Liability 

The City's total OPEB liability of $9,088,842 was measured as of May 31, 2023 and was determined by 
an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumpuons and other inputs — The total OPEB liability in the May 31, 2023 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included 
in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 7.5% 
Salary increases 4.0%, including intlation 
Discount rate 3.16% annually (Beginning of Year to Determine ADC) 

3.74% annually (As of End of Year Measurement Date) 
Healthcare cost trend rates Flat 4.0% annually 
Mortality SOA RP-2000 Table 

The discount rate was hased on the average of the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Obligation municipal 
bond index as of May 31. 2023, the end of the applicable measurement period. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the May 31, 2023 vahiation were based on the results of ongoing 
evaluations of the assumptions from June 1, 2009 to May 31, 2023. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

13. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (continued) 

$ 9,6(16,768 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at May 31, 2022 

Changes for the year: 

Sen ice cost 253,379 

Interest 299,976 

Differences between expected and actual experience (11,475) 

Changes in assumptions (832,023) 

Benefit payments and net transfers (227,782) 

Net changes (517.926) 

Balance at May 31, 2023 $ 9,088.843 

Sensitivity qf the total OPEB liabilit)• to chaws In the discount rate — The following presents the total 
OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2 16%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.16%) than 
the current discount rate. 

1.0(Vo Decrease 
(2.74%) 

Total OPEB liability S 1 1.062,007 

Current Discount 
Rate (3.74%) 

1.0% Increase 
(4.74%) 

5 9.088.843 S 7.590,309 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates — The following presents 
the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (3.0%) or 1-percentage-point 
higher (5.0%) than the current healthcare trend rates: 

1M% Decrease 
(3.0%)  

Current Trend 
(4.0%) 

1.0% Increase 
(5.0%)  

Total OPEB liahility $ 7,760,813 9,088,8-13 10,817,950 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

For the year ended May 31, 2023, the City recognized OPEB expense of S376,679. At May 31, 2023, the City 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following 
sources: 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources  

Deferred Lttlows 
of Resources    

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 497,032 $ (652,583) 
Changes in assurnptions 1,663,084 (1.773,128) 
Total 2,160,116 S (2,425,711) 
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13. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB1  (continued) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to C)PEB 
will be recopized in OPEB expense as Mows: 

Years ending May 31: 

 

2024 $ (176,595) 
/015 (176,595) 
10)(, 1176,595) 
2027 176,595) 
/018 (88,011) 

Thereafter 528,796 
Total S (265,595) 

14. Contingencies & Commitments 

Commitments 
At May 31, 2023, the City had outstandin2 commitments resulting from construction contracts in prouress 
of $8,490,017. 

Litigation 
Various lawsuits are pending against the City. In the opinion of the City management, the potential loss 
on lawsuits will not he matenal to the City's basic tinancial statements. 

Grant Compliance 
The City receives state and federal assistance through various grant programs. Management is confident 
that all significant grant conditions have been met; however, grantor agencies routinely review grant 
activity and could request reimbursement if a dispute occurs regarding compliance with grant conditions. 

15. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets: 
errors and omissions: injuries to employees: and natural disasters. The City is a member of two separate 
trust funds estahlished by the Louisiana Municipal Association that encompasses self-insurance of (1) 
Municipal professional liability and comprehensive general liability, and (2) Statutory workers' 
compensation. The City carries commercial insurance for all other risk of loss. 

The trust funds for professional liabilityicomprehensive general liability and statutory workers 
compensation are pooling arrangements whereby there is sharing a risk among the participants of the trust 
funds. The City reports its premiums as insurance expenditures and expenses these premiums over the pro 
rata periods involved. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

16. Concentration of Credit Risk-Proprietary Fund 

Accounts receivable from utility customers were comprised of the following sources: 
residential — 54%, commercial — 35%; other governmental agencies — 3%. Outstanding balances are 
partially secured by deposits made when service is requested. 

17. Tax Abatement 

The City entered into an agreement with the Industrial Development Board of the City of Gonzales, 
Louisiana (IDB) pursuant to Part II of chapter 27 of Title 33 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of the 1950, 
as amended (La. R.S. 33:9038.31 to 33:9038.42, inclusive) (the "Tax Increment Development Acr.) These 
statutes grant the City the authority to create economic development districts, and through itself or certain 
other issuers of bonds, including local industrial development boards, to issue bonds and pledge to the 
payment of such bonds the incremental increases in sales taxes derived from the project or development 
located in the economic district and financed with such bonds. The City has agreed to abate 1.5 cents of 
its 2 cents sales tax collected within the economic development district. The State of Louisiana agreed to 
abate 1.5 cents of its sales tax collected within the district up to a maximum of $10,500,000. The IDB 
issued Tax Increment Revenue Bonds to assist Cabela's Retail LA, LLC and Carlisle Resort, L.L.C. with 
the acquisition of land, construction and equipping of a Cabela's retail outlet and certain infrastructure. 
The entire amount of the sales tax is dedicated to the payment of the Tax Increment Revenue Bonds issued 
by the Industrial Development Board of the City of Gonzales. For the year ended May 31, 2023 the City 
abated $1,008,069 of sales taxes. 

The City created the Tanger Mall Economic Development District, (the District) pursuant to La. R.S. 
33:9038.32. La L.S. 33:9038.39 permits economic development districts to levy sales and use taxes up to 
2%. The City of Gonzales adopted Ordinance No. 2999 to levy a 1% sales tax in the District for twenty 
years. The City of Gonzales, Tanger Mall Economic District, and Tanger Properties Limited Partnership 
entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement whereby 70% of the proceeds of the tax will be used to 
reirnburse Tanger Properties Limited Partnership for documented construction cost to enlarge the 
buildings, tenant allowances and improvements to the infrastructure up to $14,836,092. The remaining 
30% of the tax may be expended by the City or the District to pay for economic development projects in 
the City, whether inside or outside of the District. For the year ended May 31, 2023 the City abated 
$868,061. 

The City created the Conway Economic Development District pursuant to La. R.S. 33:9038.32. La L.S. 
33:9038.39 permits econornic development districts to levy sales and use taxes up to 2% and to levy 
occupancy taxes up to 2%. The City of Gonzales adopted Ordinance No. 4065 to levy 1% sales and 1% 
hotel tax in the District for twenty-five years. The City of Gonzales, Conway Econornic District, State of 
Louisiana and Conway Development LLC entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement whereby the 
proceeds of the tax collections in the District will be used to reirnburse Conway Development LLC for 
Phase 1 & 2 infrastructure irnprovements. For the year ended May 31, 2023, the City abated $146,978. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

18. Accountinu Changes/Prior Year Restatement  

The Government implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, 
Leases. GASB Statement No. 87 enhances the relevance and consistency of information of the 
government's leasing actnities. It establishes requirement for lease accounting based on the principle that 
leases are financings of the right to use an underlyin2 asset. A lessee is required to recognize a lease 
liability and an intangible nght to use lease asset. and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable 
and a deferred inflow of resources. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 87 resulted in a 
restatement of previously reported net position and fund balance as follows: 

June I, 2022 net position, as 

Govermnental 
Activities 

 

previously reported $ 45,994,5(19 
Net effect of recording right to use 
assets and lease liabilities 2,895 

June I, 2022 net position, as restated $ 45..997,404 

19. Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date the financial statements were available to 
be issued, October 30, 2023, and determined that there were no events that require disclosure. 

No subsequent e‘ents occurring after this date have been evaluated for inclusion in these financial 
statements. 



CITY OF GONZALES 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2023  

REVENUES 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

   

Taxes S 14.735.000 1; 14,735,000 $ 15,579,701 
Franchise fees 1.065.500 1,065,500 1,487,377 
Licenses and permits 1.570.000 1,570,000 1,888,640 
Fees, fines and forfeitures 163.500 163,500 135,919 
Miscellaneous 253,040 )53,040 542,767 

Fire deparunent revenue 681,000 681,000 875.699 
Grant revemie 2.586.981 2,672,546 1.096,169 
Investment earnings (losses) 28,000 28,000 189.430 

Total revenues 21.083.021 21,168,586 21,795,702 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

   

General government 2.556.110 2,579,110 2.208,704 
Public safety. 

   

Police 7.028.000 7,167,254 7.167,981 
Fire 4,042,500 4,042,500 4.105.698 

Streets and drainage 1.544.600 1,579,600 1.414.368 
Sanitation 1,285,400 1,285,400 1.287.532 
Recreation. building and grounds 1.813.171 1,813,171 1.722.785 
Civic center 70,000 70,000 44.219 
Code enforcernent 419.200 457,200 384.157' 

Total expenditures 18,758,981 18,994,235 18,335,439 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 2,324,041) 2,174,351 3.460.263 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in 

  

26,504 
Transfers out (3,000,000) (3,51)0,000) (3.500.000) 

Total other tinancing sources (uses) (3,000,0(►0) (3,500,000) (3,473.496) 

Net change in fund balance 075.9(,0) (1,325,649) (13,233) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of year 14.332.322 14,331,321 17,469,732 

Fund Balance. End of Year S 13,656,362 $ 13,006,673 $ 17.456.499 



CITY OF GONZALES  
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

FOR THE YEAR E NDED MAY 31, 2023 

 

2023 2022 10' I 20.'0 2019 

Total OPEB Liability 

     

Service cost $ 253.379 $ 310.502 $ 304.550 $ 216.941 $ 201.657 

Interest 299,976 1 35,5P 266,230 295.134 297,987 

Differences between expected and 

actual expel ieuce (11,475) 258.808 (1,088.074) 468.258 (32.650) 

Changes of assiunptions (832,023) (1,483.)51) 467.986 1.700,314 407.746 

Benefit payments (227,782) (269,956) (259,850) (217.678) (226,957) 

Net change in total OPEB liability (517,925) (949,085) (309.158) 2.463.069 647.783 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 9,606.768 10,555.853 10,865.011 8.401.942 7.754.159 

Total OPEB liability - ending $ 9.088,843 $ 9.606.768 $ 10,555.853 $10,865.011 $ 8,401,9-12 

Covered-employee payroll $ 6.781.509 $ 7.471.076 $ 7.183.737 $ 6.525.888 $ 6,274.892 

Net OPEB liability as a peicentage ot 

covered-employee payi-oll 134.02° O 128.59° O 146.94° O 166.49°O 133 90% 

Notes to Schedule: 

Benefil clianges. None None None None None 

Chauges O.4.‘Aumptions 

     

Discount role • 3.74"o 3.16"o 2 26% 2.480 ti 3 56° a 

Morialio• • RP-2000 RP-2000 RP-2000 RP-2000 RP-2000 

Troid 4.00'1.0 4.00". 0 4 0W u 4.00% -1 00(!u 

This scheduk mtended to sliow information for ln yean. Adchuonal years will bc dNplayed as they become available. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE TEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2023  (-) 

MERS (Plan A) 

2023 2022 21121 2020 2019 2013 2017 2016 

        

Ernployeei Plopornon of the Net Pension L iability t Aisei) 2.5471 Plu 2 58198% 2 5032I% 2 57116% 2 55685% 2 55351°u 2 62tic5')o 2.5757". 

Employees Ploportionate Share of the Nei Pension Liabiliiy (Asset) 

        

Governmental Activatle4 1 8.7i0.282 $ 5.242.707 S 8.520,- 44 S 5.165.439 S 7.940.313 S 5.225.439 1 R.280.410 S 7.176.519 

Business-type Activities S 3A- 4.423 S I 939.084 S 2 hq0.7h3 S 2.578.560 $ 2.646 - 71 S 2.456 049 $ 2.476.058 S 2.024.146 

Entployees Covered-Employee Payroll S 206.396 S 5.031.544 S 4 956.325 S 4 728 535 S 4.660 $26 $ 4.63-  341 S 4.692 636 S 4.390.294 

Employer's Propurttouale Shale uf the Net Pension Laability *Asset) 

a; a percentage of its Covet ed-Einployee Payaoll 227 115.8% 142 7353% 226 20o2°0 227 2161% 227  15O% 210.3559% 229 4120°4 209.1396% 

Plan Fidikiary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pen am Liability 67 87(3)% 77 8200% 64 5200°0 64.65O% 63 940fre 62 404(f°4 62 1103% 6o.1792°o 

MPERS 

        

Employer's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 1 U5-114% 1.02012% 0.9"671"i h.56367°4 n S8568*. 11 i11811v°o ti 00666% U94190°0 

Employee,  Proportionate Slue of the Net Pension Laability (Asset) 

Govenimental Activities 10."75.223 S 5.490,05 s S 93327,05R S 7.543.543 S 7.48'.593 5.015.i4t) S 9.059.615 - .375,794 

Employees Covered-Employee Payroll S 3.106.64i S 3.114.73.1 S 2.0I.533 S 2.593.846 I, 2.608.319 S 2.589.029 S 2.- 30.30u 2,517.750 

Employees Ploportionate Sharc of the Nei Pension Liability (Asset) 
as a percrutage of its Covered-Employee Payioll 337 6791% 176 2608% 32" I S540 302 3905°o 287.13658% 309 5887% 331.3176% 293.0699°o 

Plau Fiduciary Net Posittou as e Percentage of the Total Pci1.401i Ltabthty 7h 7991% 54 085I% 9450°0 71.0078% - I 85- 1% 7u.U81 5'lb 66 0422% 70.7303% 

LASERS 

        

Employee; hoportton of the Net PellNion Liability (Asset) 000300 0.00037% 0.0003"o 000037% U 00039% 0.00040% U 0000% 0 Otiu.18°0 

Ernployea's Pioportionate Share nf the Nei Pension Liability (Asset) 

ernmental ALtivities $ 27,366 S 20.145 S 3Q.Sla S 26.734 S 26 530 S 28.366 f 31 459 S 26.I1S 

Eauph.yees Cos ered-Eniployee Payroll S S 7.110 S 7.11U 5 6778 $ IV) $ lln 7.1l1) S 7.Il0 
Euiployer's Proportionate Sb.ue of the Net Pension Liability *Asset) 

as a percentage of its Cos et ed-Ernployee Payroll 354 894510 253 3333% 420 2405% 394 4231% 373.1364% 39S 9592% 442.5833% 367.3418% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Positon as a Percentage of the Tota/ Petkiltill 63 "0W% - 2 8000% 5813000°D 62 9000% 64 3000°U 62.54 1- % 721;:nku 62 o632°o 

tv intended to show ntrormatinn for 11)s eors Additionni .sears lad/ be divplened os the.c beonne osotlahie 

t•i The amounts presented has e a measurement date of the ptes ions fiscal yeal cud of the respective retirement system 

The three Retirement Systruis reported ia lilts schedule aie as follows: 

NIERS t Plan At = Employees' Renrement System 

N1PERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

LASERS = Lotusiingi State Employees' Retirement System 

Sec mazoinlianying notes tlx schedule nf proportitinale shale uf the uct pension liability 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF PR()PORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET  

PENSION LIABILITY AND SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2023  

CHANGES IN BENEFIT TERMS AND ASSUMPTIONS RELATED TO 
DEFINED PENSION PLANS  

Changes of Benefit Terms include: 

Mumeipil Employees' Retirement System - Plon  
There nere no changes of benefit terms for the year ended May 31, 2023. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
There were no changes of henetit tenns tor the year ended May 31, 2023 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System  
There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended May 31, 2023. 

Changes of Assumptions: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System - Plan À  

There were no changes of assumptions t0r the year ended May 31, 2023. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System  

There were no changes of assurnptions for the year ended May 31, 2023. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System  

There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended May 31, 2023. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NON-NIAJOR GOVERNNIENTAL FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS 

SPECLkL. REVENUE FUNDS 

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for sales tax collections within the Tanger Mall 
Economic Development District, Conway Economic Development District, and the PACE Cemer 
Economic Del, elopment Distnct. 

TANGER MALL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

This fund accounts for funding used in economic development projects selected by the District 
through sa1es tax revenues collected in the district. 

CONWAY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

This fund accounts for the funding dedicated to infrastructure improvements in the District through 
a sales tax and hotel occupancy tax collected in the district. 

PACE CENTER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

This fund accounts for the funding purpose of financing, construction, maintenance and operation 
of an event and conference center for the City through a hotel occupancy tax collected in the district. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
MAY 31, 2023 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

ASSETS 

Tanger Mall 
Economic 

Development Distnct 

Conway 
Economic 

Development Distnct 

PACE Center 
Economic 

Development District 

Total 
Special Revenue 

Funds 

       

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,080.804 $ 329.674 $ 2.019,N41 $ 4,430.159 
Receivables 

 

161.033 

 

26.355 

 

110,551 297.939 
Restricted cash: 

       

Cash aud cash equivalents 

 

1,861.323 

   

175,491 /.036.814 

Tutal assets 

 

4,103.160 

 

356.029 $ 2.305,723 $ 6,764.912 

LIABILITIES 

       

Accounts payable 

 

112.723 $ 

 

S 1,382 $ 114.105 
.Accrued expenses 

     

2,380 2.380 

Total liabilities 

 

I 12.'23 

   

3. 762 116.485 

FUND BALANCES 

       

Restricted 

 

3.990.43 7 

 

35(, ,11/ 9 

 

2.301.961 6.648.427 

Total fund balance% 

 

3.990.43 7 

 

35b,11/ 9 

 

2.301,9(4 6,648.427 

Futal liabilitius and fund balance% X 4.1 03.160 

   

2. -3V. '27, 5; 6,764.912 



CITY OF GONZALES  

( OM BIN INC STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

H ANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED M 31, 2022  

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

REVENUES 

Trawl Mall 
Economic 

De\ clopulent DitrIct 

Conway 
Economic 

De% elopment Dv4n,:t 

PACE Centel 
Economic 

Devebvnent Disti let 

Total 
Special Revenue 

Funds 

5 980.088 

97,571 

Si 146 978 

5.061 

S 604.419 
75,01i0 

32,3-12 

S 1.731.485 
75,000 

134,974 

Taxes 
Miscellaneous 

Intetest 
Total revenues 1 077.659 152.039 

 

711.761 

 

1 ,)-1 l .459 

EXPENDITURES 

      

Ecolionuc development 686.062 47 500 

 

52.391 

 

785.953 

Debt Service: 

      

Priucrpal 

   

83.000 

 

83.000 
Interest 

   

3,430 

 

3,130 

Total expendinues (,Fi6.062 IL 1 

 

I 4.S21 

 

87',3h3 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures I 597 104.539 

 

572.940 

 

1 069.070 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

      

Transfer m 

 

137.699 

   

137.699 
Total other fiwincmg sources 

 

137.699 

   

137,699 

Net change in fund balances 391.597 242 238 

 

572.940 

 

1.206.775 

Fund Balance. Beginning of 1 ear 3.598,840 113.791 

 

1.729,021 

 

5.441,652 

Fund Balance. Ead of Yva r 3 990.437 356.029 t 2.301.961 t 6 648.427 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
SCHEDULE OF PER DIEM PAID 

YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2023  

Councilmen: MONTHLY ANNUAL 

Tyler Turner S 1.000 S 12.000 

Han Ad Stewart S 1.000 12.000 

K irk Boudreaux S 1.000 12.000 

John Berthelot 1.000 12.000 

Timothy Riley 1.000 1 '. 000 

ti 60.000 
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CITY OF GONZALES  

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION BENEFITS AND OTHER PAYMENTS 

TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  

NIAY 31, 2023  

Agency Head Name:Title: Barney Areencaux. Mayor 

Purpose Amount 
Salary $ 146,499 
Benefits - health insurance 13,455 
Benefits - retirement 43,183 
Clothing allowance 650 
Per diems 1,300 
Travel 1,857 
Conference fees 1,850 

 

$ 208,794 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
JUSTICE SYSTEM FUNDING SCHEDULE - COLLECTINGIDISBURSING ENTITY 

AS REQUIRED BY ACT 87  OF THE 2020 REGULAR LEGISLATIVE SESSION  
MAY 31, 2023 

 

First Sis Month 
Period Ended 

Second Six 
Month Period 

Cash Basis Presentation 11/30/22 Ended 5/31/23 

Beginning Balance of Amounts Collected (i.e. cash on hand) 99.398 5 123.125 

Add: Collections 

   

Bi.md Fees 100 

 

500 
Cnininal Court Costs/Fees 87 895 

 

811.452 
Criminal Fines - Contempt 17 835 

 

14,610 
Restitution 1.917 

 

3,691 
Other 

   

Subtotal Collections 107,747 

 

99,253 

Less: Disbursements To Governments & Nonprofits: 

   

Ascension Parish Clerk of Court Crimmalrourt CostsiFees 4.465 

 

3.670 
Ascension Parish Court Fund/Criminal Court Costs:Fees 4 785 

 

4,935 
23rd Judicial District Public Detendees Office.'Crmunal Court Costs:Fees I-1.344 

 

14.805 
Parish of Ascension Witness Fund/Crunmal Court Costs fees l 0.846 

 

11.186 
LDHH Traumatic Head & Spinal Coid funny Trust Fund Cmumal Court Costsfees 705 

 

545 
LA State Pulice Academy Applied Technology-hitoxilyzerCiimmal Court Costsfees 975 

 

425 
Treasmei . State i if Lonimana-CMIS:Cruninal Court Cirsts/Fees 957 

 

9S7 
.Ascension Clerk RuidiCriminal Court Costsfees 8.250 

 

7.875 
Ascension Parish CourtCruninal Fines - Contempt 13.370 

 

10.940 
District Attorney's Office 23rd .IDCICniumal Court Costsfees 6 380 

 

6.580 
Crime Stoppers/Crimmal Court Costs:Fees 638 

 

65S 
Louisiana Supreme Court/Criminal Court Costs/Fees 157 

 

163 
LA Commission of Law Enforcement.Ciiminal Court Costs:Fees 1,618 

 

1,675 

Less: Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency 
Anicomts "Self-Dishursed" to Collecting Agency $.473 

 

7.533 

Less: Disbursements to Individuals/3rd Party Collection or Processing Agencies 

   

Bond Fee Refunds 

  

1,005 
Restitution Payments to Individuals (addinonal detail is not required) 

  

3 981 
Other Disbursements to Individuals (additional detail is not required) 

   

Payments to 3n1 Party Collection/Processing Aµeucies 2.8k) 

 

1.164 

Subtotal Disbursemenls/Retainage 84 020 

 

811,1" 

Total: Ending Balance of Amounts Collected but not Disbursed/Retained (i.e. cash on hand) 1?"; 125 

 

142,251 
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IIIP DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mr. Barney Arceneaux, Mayor 
and the Members of the City Council 
City of Gonzales, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
City of Gonzales, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended May 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise City of Gonzales, Louisiana's basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Gonzales, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
Gonzales, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
City of Gonzales, Louisiana's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Gonzales, Louisiana's financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

/0.1.43  , RAJA')  

Gonzales, Louisiana 
October 30, 2023 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2023  

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS  

Fmaneud Statements 

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the tinancial statements of City 
of Gonzales were prepared in accordance with CiAAP 

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the tinancial statements are reported in the 
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of City of Gonzales, which 
would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, was 
disclosed during the audit. 

SECTION II - FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATENIENT FINDINGS 

None noted. 

SECTION III - NON-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

None noted. 
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CITY OF GONZALES  
SUMNIARY 5C'HEI)LTLE OF PRIOR ALTDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED NIAY 31, 2023  

A. FINDINGS - FLNANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

2022-0411 Bank Reconciliation.  

CONDITION: The City did not reconcile nine monthly hank statement, in a timely manner. 

RECOMMENDATION: All cash balances as reported on the City's general ledger should be reconciled 
to appropriate supporting documentation on a monthly basis. 

CURRENT STATUS: Finding was. resolved. No similar tinding noted in current year. 

2022-002 Reconciliation and Review Process 

CONDITION: During the course of the audit, instances of unreconciled accounts were noted which 
resulted in various adjustments 

RECOMIVIENDATION: Management should ensure that those charged with review of transactions 
and account balances understand their role in the internal control process and are performing an 
effective review to confirm that transactions are properly recorded and balanced in the financial 
records at year end. Evidence of the review as well as the proper timing of the review should be 
documented. 

CURRENT STATUS: Fmding was resolved. No similar finding noted in current year. 

B. FINDINGS - NON-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

None noted. 

C. FINDINGS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM AUDIT 

None noted. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

GONZALES, LOUISIANA 

STATEWIDE AGREED UPON PROCEDURES 

MAY 31, 2023  



D D R 
DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Honorable Mayor Barney Arceneaux, City Council Members, and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the City of Gonzales (the 
City) and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in 
the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period June 1, 2022 through May 31, 
2023. The City's management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

City of Gonzales has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet 
the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas 
identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2023. Additionally, LLA 
has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report 
may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of 
interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are 
responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address 
each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entity's 
operations: 

i. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the finctions noted above. 

11. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list, (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase 
orders, (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law, and (5) documentation 
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

iii. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

iv. Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the finctions noted above. 
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v. PayrolUPersonnel, including (1) payroll processin2, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leme and overtime worked. and (3) approval process for 
employee rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

Written policies and pmcedures were obtained and address the fiinctions noted abolv. 

Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms 
and conditions. (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

Written mlicles and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

vii. Travel and Evense Reimbursement, inchiding ( ) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements. and (4) required 
approvers. 

Written policles and procedinws were obtained and addres.y the functions noted above. 

viii. Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards. if applicable), including (1) 
how cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation 
requirements, (4) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitorin2 card usage (e.g., 
determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

Written policie.s and procedures were obtained ¿Ind address the janctions noted above. 

ix. Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to 
monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained 
to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity's 
ethics policy 

Written policies and procedures were obtanied and address the linictions noted above. 

x. Debt Service. including (1) debt issuance approval. (2) continuing disclosure ENIMA 
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements. and (4) debt service requirements. 

Written policles and proc(?dutes were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

xi. Infirmation Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location isolated from the network. (3) periodic testingiverification that 
backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application 
of all available system and software patches:updates, and (6) identification of personnel, 
processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

Written pohcies and procedures yvere obtained and address the fiinctions noted above. 

xii. Prevention ofSexual Harassment, including R.S. 42.342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

Written policles and procedures were obtained and address the finictions noted above. 

2) Board or Finance Committee 

A. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the hoard's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the tiscal period, and 



i. Observe that the boardfinance conunittee met with a quomm at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the hoard's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other 
equivalent document 

Obtained and reviewed minutes of the managing board f0r the fiscal period noting that the 
hoard met with u quorum monthly. 

ii. For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, 
quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum. on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget-
to-actual, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds. Alternatively Pr those entities 
reporting on the not-for-profit accounting model. observe that the minutes referenced or 
included financial activity relating to public funds rf those public funds comprised more 
than 1(v% qf the enthy's collections during theliscal period. 

Obtained and reviewed minutes qf the managing board Pr the fiscal period noting lilar the 

minutes included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons Pr the ingiorfirnds. 

iii. For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned 
fund balance in the general fiind. If the general fimd had a negative ending unassigned 
fund halance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting 
during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative 
unassigned fimd balance in the general fund. 

The general Jirnd reported u positive innestricted firnd balance in the prior reur audit 

report. 

i‘. Observe whether the boardfmance comnuttee received written updates of the progress of 
resolving audit finding( s), according to management's corrective action plan at each 
meeting until the findings are considered fully resolved. 

Obtained and reviewed documentation that was presented to the Council on written 
updates of the progress of resolving audit finding(.sr. according to management's 
corrective action plan at each monthly meeting until findings were resolved 

3) Bank Reconciliations 

Ohtain a listing of entity bank accounts I'm the fiscal period trom management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or 
all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect 
the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that: 

Obtained listing of client bank accounts lirr the fiscal periodfrom management and management's 
representation that listing i.s complete. 

i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

No exceptions noted. 

it. Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a board 
member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each hank 
reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 



No exceptions noted. 

111. Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have 
been outstanding for rnore than l 2 months frorn the statement closing date. if applicable. 

Not applicable, the entity did not hair any reconciling Items that have hecn outstanding 
fir more than 12 months. 

4) collections (excluding electronic funds trunsfrrs) 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash checkslmoney orders 
(cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randornly select 
5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Obtained u listing of deposit sites and management's representation that listing l.s complete. 

B. For each deposit site selected. obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit 
site (e.g.. 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites). obtain and inspect written policies and 
procedures relating to ernployee job duties (if there are no written policies or procedures, then 
inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location. and obsene that job duties 
are properly segregated at each collection location such that 

Obtained a listing qf collection lomtions and management's representatunt that listing is complete. 

t. Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers. reeisters; 

No exceptions noted. 

Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for preparing/making 
bank deposits, unless another employee;official is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit; 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers. unless another employee official is 
responsible tbr reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit: and 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. The employee( s) responsible tbr reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and, or 
suhsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and:or agency fimd additions. is (are) not also 
responsible for collecting cash, unless another employee.official verities the reconciliation. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. Obtain frorn rnanagernent a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees 
who have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft was in force during 
the fiscal period. 

No exceptions noted. 

D. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank 
Reconciliations procedure 3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were 
made on the dates randomly selected and randornly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made 



on the same day). ,41rernative/y, thc practitioner may use a source document other than hank 
statements when selecting the deposit datesjor testing. such as a cash collectwn log, daily revenue 
report, receipt hook, etc. Obtain Ripporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and. 

i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentanon to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions noted. 

Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

No exceptions-  noted. 

iv. Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or 
drawer). 

No exceptions noted. 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

No exceptions noted. 

5) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases. travel reimbur.sements, and petty cash 
purchases) 

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payrnents for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 
5). 

Obtained listing qf locations that process payments and management 's repwsemation that listing 
is complete. 

B. For each location selected under procedure 5A above. obtain a listing of those employees involved 
with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures 
relating to employee job duties t if the agency has no written policies and procedures, then inquire 
of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that 

i. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, 
and placing an order or making the purchase; 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors: 

No exceptions noted 

The employee responsihle for processing payments is prohibited from adding modifying 
vendor tiles, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to 
vendor tiles, 

No evceptions noted. 



iv. Either the employee official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employer to mail who is not responsible for processing payments: and 

No exceptions noted 

only employees!officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement 
(release) of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds 
transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or some other electronic means. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. For each location selected under procedure #5A above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and ohtain management's 
representation that the population is complete. Randornly select 5 disbursements for each location, 
obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and 

i. Observe whether the disbursement, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the 
related original itemized invoice and supporting docurnentation indicates that deliverables 
included on the invoice were received by the entity, and 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g.. initial:date, 
electronic logging) of sep-egation of duties tested under procedure ii5B above. as 
applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 

D. Usine the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations 
procedure #3,4, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic 
disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by 
only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) 
approved by the required number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: If no electronic 
payments were made from the main operating account during the month selected the practitioner 
should select an alternative month andor account for testing that does include electronic 
disbursements. 

No exceptions noted. 

6) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purcha.se Cards (Curds) 

A. ()btain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fliel cards, and 
purchase cards (cards) for the tiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the 
persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the 
listing is complete. 

Obtained listing Ollie credit cards and management's representation that listing is complete. 

B. Using the listine prepared by management. randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that 
were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement 
for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement). Obtain supporting 
documentation, and 



a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception 
reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or 
electronically approved) by someone other than the authorized card holder (those instances 
requiring such approval that may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials, 
such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality, should not be reported); and 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #7B above, 
excluding fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each 
statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g., each card should have 
10 transactions subject to inspection). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation 
of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for 
meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the 
transaction and observe whether management had a compensating control to address missing 
receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is subject to increased scrutiny. 

No exceptions noted. 

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during 
the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. 
Randomly select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid 
expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. 
For each of the 5 reimbursements selected 

Obtained listing of travel and related expense reimbursements and management's representation 
that listing is complete. 

i. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more 
than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov); 

Four of the five reimbursements used a per diem rate that was more than those rates 
established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration. 

Managements response: Management used a rate that was approved based on the written 
policy. That rate will be changed in the policy to reflect the rates established either by the 
State of Louisiana or U.S. General Services Administration. 

ii. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased; 

No exceptions noted. 



iii. Ohserve that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the husinessspublic 
purpose (kw meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and 
Procedures procedure PIA(vii): and 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in wnting. by someone other 
than the person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions noted. 

8) C'on tracts 

A. Ohtain from management a listing of all agreements; contracts for professional services, materials 
and supplies. leases. and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal 
period. Alternatively, the practitioner may nse an equivalent selectwn source, such as un actne 
vendor list. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listine, excluding the praetitioner's contract, and 

Obtained of contracts initiated or renewed durmg the fiscal period and management's 
representation that listing is complete. 

i. Ohserve whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law 
(e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised). if required by law: 

Not applicable. 

ii. Observe whether the contract was approved hy the governing body 1)oard, if required by 
policy or law (e.g Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter): 

Not applicable 

iii. If the contract was amended (e.g.. change order), observe that the original contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the 
contract terms (e.g.. if approval is required for any amendment, the documented approval), 
and 

Not applicable. 

iv. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice. agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice 
and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

No excepti(Nns noted. 

9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related 
paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries:pay rates in the 
personnel tiles. 

Obtained listing qf employees and management :s representation that listing was complete .4grecd 
paid salaries to authorized salariesipay rates in the personnel file without eveeption. 



B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under procedure #9A above. obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, 
and 

i. Observe that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and 
leave (e.g., vacation. sick, compensatory); 

Salaried employees are not relpfired tn doctunent their attendance. The hourly employees 
documented attendance. Leave was documented Pr all employees. 

ii. Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees 
or officials; 

No exceptions noted 

iii. Observe that any leave accrued or taken durinL,  the pay period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records: and 

No exceptions noted. 

it . Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authonzed salary pay rate 
found within the personnel tile. 

Aro exceptions noted. 

C. C)htain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
penod and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees 
or officials and obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's 
termination payment calculations and the entity's policy on ternnnation pavments. Agree the hours 
to the employee's or official's cumulative leave records. agree the pay rates to the employee's or 
official's authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's personnel files, and agree the 
termination payment to entity policy. 

Obtained listing of terminated employees and management's representation that listing wa.v 
complete No exceptions noted. 

D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee pornons of third-party payroll 
related amounts (e.g.. payroll taxes, retirement contnbutions. health insurance premiums, 
garnishments, workers' compensation premiums. etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms 
have heen filed. by required deadlines. 

No e.xceptions noted. 

10) Ethics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure OA 
obtain ethics documentation from management, and 

i. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates that each employee official completed 
one hour of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42.1170; and 

No exceptions noted 

ii. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each 
employee and official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the 
fiscal period, as applicable. 



No exceptions noted. 

23. Inquire andlor observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S. 
42:1170. 

No exceptions noted. 

11) Debt Service 

A. Obtain a listing of bonds notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representanon that the listing is complete. Select all debt instniments on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained 
for each debt instrument issued as required by Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

Not apphcable. 

B. Obtain a listing of bonds:notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one hondinote, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-
lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

Not applicable 

12) Fraud Notice 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of puhlic funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete Select all misappropriations on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation. and observe that the entity reported the 
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the 
entity is domiciled as required by R.S. 24.523. 

Management asserted that the entity did not have an). imsappropriations of public Jimds or assets. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the nonce required by R.S. 24.523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud. waste, or abuse of public funds. 

No exceptions noted. 

13) InjOrmation Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuio. 

A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results svith management, and report 
"We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

i. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical 
data (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for backing 
up critical data) and observe evidence that such backup (a) occurred within the past week, 
(b) was not stored on the government's local server or network, and (c) was encrypted 

We perbrined the procedure and discussed the results with management. 



ii. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has testettverified that its 
backups can be restored (if there is no written documentation. then inquire of personnel 
responsible for testing.'ver4ine backup restoration) and observe evidence that the 
test verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

15.‘. peyinmed tIl£ procedure and discussed the r£S!lllb' with management 

Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
tnanagement's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers 
and obsene while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and 
active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in 
use are currently supported by the vendor. 

lreperibruwd the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using the list 
of terminated employees obtained in procedure 49C. Observe evidence that the selected tenninated 
eniployees have heen removed or disahled ftom the network. 

We perfOrmed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

14) Prevention of Sexual Harassment 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees;officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure OA, 
obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and ohserve that the 
documentation demonstrates each employeeofficial completed at least one hour of sexual 
harassment training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. 

No exceptions noted. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its 
website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

No exceptions noted 

C Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report fin- the current fiscal period, observe that the 
report was dated on or before Febniary 1, and observe that the report includes the applicable 
requirements of R.S. 42.344: 

i. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements: 

No evceptions noted. 

Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred: 



No exceptions noted. 

iv. Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective action; and 

No exceptions noted. 

v. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

No exceptions noted. 

We were engaged by City of Gonzales to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted 
our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and applicable standards of Governrnent Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to 
and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression 
of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might 
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of City of Gonzales and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

 
c:- 

. 
a RUA) 

Gonzales, Louisiana 
October 23, 2023 
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